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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D. C. 20549
FORM 10-Q 

(Mark one)

For the quarterly period ended December 31, 2005

OR

Commission File Number: 1-9109 

RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

880 Carillon Parkway, St. Petersburg, Florida 33716
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(727) 567-1000 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 
months (or such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes x No o 
 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer”
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 
 
Large accelerated filer x       Accelerated filer o     Non-accelerated filer o 
 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o 
No x 
 
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's classes of common stock, as of the close of the latest practicable date. 
 
 

75,183,363 shares of Common Stock as of February 7, 2006

x    QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF  
    THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934  

o    TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF  
    THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934  

For the transition period from   To  

Florida   No. 59-1517485 
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)   (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
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RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(Unaudited)

  December 31, September 30,

  2005 2005

  (in thousands)

Assets:    
Cash and cash equivalents $ 676,203  $ 998,749 
Assets segregated pursuant to federal regulations - cash and cash equivalents 3,068,147  2,351,805 
Securities owned:    

Trading securities, at fair value 477,094  359,679 
Available for sale securities, at fair value 171,203  187,549 
Other investments 64,127  - 

Receivables:    
Brokerage clients, net 1,410,865  1,426,096 
Stock borrowed 945,758  1,079,849 
Bank loans, net 1,269,338  1,000,281 
Brokers-dealers and clearing organizations 147,943  110,760 
Other 248,065  241,527 

Investments in real estate partnerships- held by variable interest entities 161,384  138,228 
Property and equipment, net 140,324  137,555 
Deferred income taxes, net 73,318  78,373 
Deposits with clearing organizations 30,912  31,286 
Goodwill 62,575  62,575 
Investment in leveraged leases, net 11,589  11,808 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 171,966  142,649 

     
  $9,130,811  $8,358,769 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:    
Loans payable $ 291,590  $ 146,462 
Loans payable related to real estate- owed by variable interest entities 144,453  144,780 
Payables:    

Brokerage clients 4,431,551  3,767,535 
Stock loaned 1,090,362  1,115,595 
Bank deposits 1,098,532  1,076,020 
Brokers-dealers and clearing organizations 86,769  146,269 
Trade and other 144,993  140,360 

Trading securities sold but not yet purchased 108,801  134,595 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 80,451  33,681  
Accrued compensation, commissions and benefits 204,214  299,657 
Income taxes payable 28,767  20,961 

     
  7,710,483  7,025,915 

     
Minority Interests 104,118  91,031 

     
Shareholders' equity:    

Preferred stock; $.10 par value; authorized    
10,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding -0- shares -  - 

Common Stock; $.01 par value; authorized    
100,000,000 shares; issued 77,440,262 at

774  765 Dec. 31, 2005 and 76,567,089 at Sept. 30, 2005
Shares exchangeable into common stock; 285,325

5,493  5,493 at Dec. 31, 2005 and at Sept. 30, 2005 
Additional paid-in capital 196,787  165,074 
Retained earnings 1,117,858  1,082,063 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 9,509  9,632 

  1,330,421  1,263,027 
Less: 839,281 and 1,256,281 common shares    

in treasury, at cost  14,211  21,204 

  1,316,210  1,241,823 

     
  $9,130,811  $8,358,769 

     
See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
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RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

     
  Three Months Ended

  December 31,   December 31,

  2005   2004

Revenues:      
Securities commissions and fees $366,476    $357,469

Investment banking 29,714    28,505

Investment advisory fees 42,746    37,452

Interest 88,050    54,416

Net trading profits 5,857    9,752

Financial service fees 23,052    22,410

Other 19,452    14,373

       
Total revenues 575,347    524,377

       
Interest expense 48,811    25,392

Net revenues 526,536   498,985

       
Non-Interest Expenses:      

Compensation, commissions and benefits 366,619    348,909

Communications and information processing 24,596    21,199

Occupancy and equipment costs 17,402    16,053

Clearance and floor brokerage 5,766    5,466

Business development 17,131    14,744

Other 24,202    26,220

Total non-interest expenses 455,716    432,591

       
Income before provision for income taxes 70,820    66,394

       
Provision for income taxes 26,226    25,562

Minority Interest (515)   1,589

Net income $ 45,109    $ 39,243

Net income per share-basic $ 0.61    $ 0.53

Net income per share-diluted $ 0.60    $ 0.52

Weighted average common shares      
  outstanding-basic 74,334    74,002

Weighted average common and common      
  equivalent shares outstanding-diluted 75,757    75,334
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RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

(continued on next page)

  Three Months Ended

  December 31, December 31,

  2005 2004

Cash Flows from operating activities:    
Net Income $ 45,109  $39,243 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net    

cash provided by operating activities:    
Depreciation and amortization 4,378  3,984 
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements (733) -
Deferred income taxes 5,055  (1,357)
Unrealized loss (gains), premium and discount amortization    

on available for sale securities and other securities 159  (529)
Effectiveness of interest rate swaps accounted for as cash flow hedges -  (3)
Loss on sale of property and equipment 636  230 
Provision for legal proceedings, bad debts and other accruals 4,653  10,712 
Stock-based compensation expense 5,155  3,897 

     
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:    

Assets segregated pursuant to federal regulations (716,342) (487,789)
Receivables:    

Brokerage clients, net 15,160  (17,866)
Stock borrowed 134,091  530,901 
Brokers-dealers and clearing organizations (37,183) (94,904)
Other 11,170  (7,835)

Trading securities, net (143,209) (69,099)
    Investments in real estate partnerships-held by variable interest entities (23,156) -  

Prepaid expenses and other assets (25,648) (33,501)

     
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:    

Payables:    
Brokerage clients 664,016  772,436 
Stock loaned (25,233) (532,536)
Brokers-dealers and clearing organizations (59,500) 4,104 
Trade and other 2,587  (13,677)

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 46,770  25,154 
Accrued compensation, commissions and benefits (95,443) (51,514)
Income taxes payable 7,806  1,758 
Minority Interest 13,087  2,383 

     
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (166,615) 84,192 
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RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

(continued from previous page)

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 

  Three Months Ended

  December 31, December 31,

  2005 2004

     
Cash Flows from investing activities:     

Additions to property and equipment, net (10,875) (3,388)
Loan originations and purchases (443,955) (119,313)
Loan repayments 172,362  93,619 
Purchases of other investments (64,127) -  
Sale of available for sale securities -  13,312 
Purchases of available for sale securities (2,308) (19,213)
Available for sale securities maturations and repayments 18,460  19,119 

     
Net cash used in investing activities (330,443) (15,864) 

     
     

Cash Flows from financing activities:    
Proceeds from borrowed funds 151,102  35,300 
Repayments of mortgage and borrowings (5,974) (3,326)
Financing activity related to variable interest entities 3,711 -  
Exercise of stock options and employee stock purchases 11,941  7,810 
Increase (decrease) in bank deposits 22,512  (12,800) 
Purchase of treasury stock (128) (83)
Cash dividends on common stock (9,314) (6,186)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based payment arrangements 733 -

     
Net cash provided by financing activities 174,583  20,715

     
Currency adjustment:    

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (71) 1,751 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (322,546) (90,794)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 998,749  528,823 

     
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 676,203  $ 619,617 

     
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:    

Cash paid for interest $ 48,317  $ 25,082 

Cash paid for taxes $ 12,935  $ 25,161 
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RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

December 31, 2005  

 
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation: 
 

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Raymond James Financial, Inc. (“RJF”) and its consolidated subsidiaries 
that are generally controlled through a majority voting interest. RJF is a Florida-based holding company whose subsidiaries are engaged in various financial service businesses; as 
used herein, the term “the Company” refers to RJF and/or one or more of its subsidiaries. All material consolidated subsidiaries are 100% owned by the Company. In accordance 
with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”), the Company also consolidates any 
variable interest entities (“VIEs”) for which it is the primary beneficiary. Additional information is discussed in Note 4 below. When the Company does not have a controlling 
interest in an entity, but exerts significant influence over the entity, the Company applies the equity method of accounting. All material intercompany balances and transactions 
have been eliminated in consolidation. 

 
Certain financial information that is normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States 

of America ("GAAP") but not required for interim reporting purposes has been condensed or omitted. Pursuant to GAAP, these unaudited condensed consolidated financial 
statements reflect, in the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated financial position and results of operations for the interim 
periods presented. The nature of the Company's business is such that the results of any interim period are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year. These unaudited 
condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the consolidated financial statements and notes 
thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2005. To prepare consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, 
management must estimate certain amounts that affect the reported assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Certain reclassifications have been made to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the prior period to conform to 
the current period presentation. 

 
On December 1, 2005 the Company’s Board of Directors approved a change in the Company’s fiscal year from the last Friday in September of each year to September 30 of each 

year. This change also applies to the Company’s fiscal quarters. 
 

Note 2 - Effects of Recently Issued Accounting Standards: 
 

In June 2005, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) in Issue 04-5, “Determining Whether a General Partner, or the General 
Partners as a Group, Controls a Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited Partners Have Certain Rights” on the guidance on how general partners in a limited 
partnership should determine whether they control a limited partnership. This consensus is effective for general partners of all new limited partnerships formed, and for existing 
limited partnerships for which the partnership agreements are modified, subsequent to the date of the ratification of this consensus (June 29, 2005). The guidance in this issue is 
effective for general partners in all other limited partnerships no later than the beginning of the Company’s fiscal year 2007. The Company adopted this EITF for partnerships created 
or modified after June 29, 2005, the impact of which was not material to its consolidated financial statements, and is currently evaluating the potential impact of this EITF for 
partnerships created prior to June 29, 2005. 

 
In March 2004, the FASB ratified the consensus reached by the EITF in Issue 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain 

Investments” on the guidance to be used in determining when an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an 
impairment loss. This consensus ratified by the FASB in March 2004 was effective for other-than-temporary impairment evaluations made in reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2004. However, the measurement and recognition guidance contained in paragraphs 10-20 of EITF 03-1 has been delayed by FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) EITF Issue 03-1-1, 
"Effective Date of Paragraphs 10-20 of EITF Issue No. 03-1.” The guidance in paragraphs 10-20 of EITF 03-1 has subsequently been replaced by guidance in FSP FAS 115-1 and 
FAS 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments”. This FSP nullifies certain requirements of Issue 03-1. The guidance in 
this FSP is effective in the Company’s fiscal second quarter of 2006. The Company does not believe that the impact of adopting the provisions of this EITF will be material to its 
consolidated financial statements. 
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In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” (SFAS 154), which replaces APB No. 20, “Accounting Changes” and FASB 

Statement No. 3, “Reporting Changes in Interim Financial Statements”. The Statement changes the accounting for, and reporting of, a change in accounting principle. Statement 154 
requires retrospective application to prior period’s financial statements of voluntary changes in accounting principle and changes required by new accounting standards when the 
standard does not include specific transition provisions, unless it is impracticable to do so. Statement 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors beginning in 
the Company’s fiscal year 2007. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption of SFAS 154. 
 
Note 3 - Trading Securities And Trading Securities Sold But Not Yet Purchased: 
 

 
Mortgage backed trading securities of $52.3 million and $79.8 million at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, respectively, are included in government obligations and 

agencies in the table above. Mortgage backed securities sold but not yet purchased of $43.5 million and $84,000 at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, respectively, are 
included in government obligation and agencies in the table above. 

Note 4 - Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”): 
 

Under the provisions of FIN 46R the Company has determined that Raymond James Employee Investment Funds I and II (the “EIF Funds”), Comprehensive Software 
Systems, Inc. (“CSS”), certain entities in which Raymond James Tax Credit Funds, Inc. (“RJTCF”) owns variable interests, and various partnerships involving real estate are VIEs. Of 
these, the Company has determined that the EIF Funds and certain tax credit fund partnerships/LLCs should be consolidated in the financial statements. 
 

The EIF Funds are limited partnerships, for which the Company is the general partner, that invest in the merchant banking and private equity activities of the Company and 
other unaffiliated venture capital limited partnerships. The EIF Funds were established as compensation and retention measures for certain qualified key employees of the Company. 
The Company makes non-recourse loans to these employees for two thirds of the purchase price per unit. The loans and applicable interest are to be repaid based on the earnings of 
the EIF Funds. The Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary, and accordingly, consolidates the EIF Funds, which had combined assets of approximately $17.6 million at 
December 31, 2005. None of those assets act as collateral for any obligations of the EIF Funds. The Company's exposure to loss is limited to its contributions and the loans funded 
to the employee investors. At December 31, 2005, that exposure is approximately $11.2 million. 

 
CSS was formed by a group of broker-dealer firms, including the Company, to develop a back-office software system. CSS is currently funded by capital contributions and 

loans from its other owners. CSS had assets of $5.2 million at December 31, 2005. The Company's exposure to loss is limited to its capital contributions. The Company is not the 
primary beneficiary of CSS and accounts for its investment using the equity method of accounting. 

 
RJTCF is a wholly owned subsidiary of RJF and is the managing member or general partner in approximately 36 individual tax credit housing funds having one or more 

investor members or limited partners. These tax credit housing funds are organized as limited liability companies or limited partnerships for the purpose of investing in limited 
partnerships which purchase and develop low income housing properties qualifying for tax credits. As of December 31, 2005, 35 of these tax credit housing funds are VIEs as 
defined by FIN 46R, and RJTCF’s interest in these tax credit housing funds which are VIEs range from .01% to 1%.  

  December 31, 2005 September 30, 2005

    Securities   Securities

    Sold but   Sold but

  Trading Not yet Trading Not yet

  Securities Purchased Securities Purchased

  (in 000's)

Marketable:        
Equities  $ 32,562 $ 17,253 $ 32,237 $ 30,256
Municipal obligations  193,413 - 177,984 17
Corporate obligations  143,263 48 27,830 2,285
Government obligations  53,155 43,823 42,009 99,465
Agencies 36,068 43,454 60,445 84
Derivative Contracts 11,393 4,223 12,795 2,488
Other  2,419 - 2,019 -

Non-marketable  4,821 - 4,360 -

  $477,094 $108,801 $359,679 $134,595
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RJTCF has concluded it is the primary beneficiary in approximately one third of these tax credit housing funds, and accordingly, consolidates these funds, which have 

combined assets of approximately $231.6 million at December 31, 2005. None of those assets act as collateral for any obligations of these funds. The Company's exposure to loss is 
limited to its advances to these funds. At December 31, 2005, that exposure is approximately $14.6 million.  

 
RJTCF is not the primary beneficiary of the remaining tax credit housing funds it determined to be VIEs and accordingly the Company does not consolidate its financial 

interests in these funds. The Company's exposure to loss is limited to its advances to those funds. At December 31, 2005, that exposure is approximately $12.1 million.  
 
The sole remaining tax credit housing fund which has been determined not to be a VIE and is wholly owned by RJTCF and is included in the Company’s consolidated 

financial statements. This wholly owned tax credit housing fund typically holds interests in certain tax credit limited partnerships for less than 90-days and has assets of 
approximately $4.1 million at December 31, 2005. 

 
As of December 31, 2005, the Company has a variable interest in several limited partnerships involved in various real estate activities, in which a subsidiary is the general 

partner. The Company is not the primary beneficiary of these partnerships and accordingly the Company does not consolidate its financial interests in these partnerships. These 
partnerships have assets of approximately $27 million at December 31, 2005. The Company's exposure to loss is limited to its capital contributions. The carrying value of the 
Company's investment in these partnerships is immaterial at December 31, 2005. 
 
Note 5 - Borrowings: 

 
Loans payable at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 are presented below:

 

 

 

  December 31,
2005

September 30,
2005

  (in 000's)

Short-term Borrowings:    
Borrowings on lines of credit (1) $ 1,151 $ 5,338
Current portion of mortgage notes payable 2,635 2,604

Federal home loan bank advances 150,000 -

Total short-term borrowings 153,786 7,942

     
Long-term Borrowings:    

Mortgage notes payable (2) 67,804 68,520

Federal home loan bank advances (3) 70,000 70,000

Total long-term borrowings 137,804 138,520

     

  Total borrowings $291,590 $146,462

     

  (1) The Company and its subsidiaries maintain one committed and several uncommitted lines of credit denominated in U.S. dollars and one uncommitted line of credit 
denominated in Canadian dollars. At December 31, 2005, the aggregate lines were $660 million and CDN$40 million, respectively, of which $1.2 million was outstanding. 
The interest rates for the lines of credit are variable and are based on the Fed Funds rate, LIBOR, and Canadian prime rate. For the three months ended December 31, 
2005, interest rates on the lines of credit ranged from 4.50% to 5.82%. For the three months ended, December 31, 2004 interest rates on the lines of credit ranged from 
2.50% to 4.25%. 

  (2) Mortgage notes payable is comprised of a mortgage loan for the financing of the Company's home office complex and a note for the financing of the office for a foreign 
subsidiary. The mortgage bears interest at 5.7% and is secured by land, buildings, and improvements with a net book value of $75,821,000 at December 31, 2005. A new 
building was purchased for $1,643,000 in April 2005 for a foreign subsidiary’s office in India and was financed with a note bearing 8.25% interest and is secured by the 
land and building. 
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Note 6 - Stock Based Compensation: 
 

At December 31, 2005, the Company had multiple stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described below. The Company issues new shares under all plans 
approved by shareholders. Effective October 1, 2005, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. The adoption 
of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements given that it adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 
effective September 28, 2002 using the modified prospective application transition method within the provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation -
Transition and Disclosure”. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation costs were reported as operating cash flows. 
SFAS No. 123(R) requires excess tax benefits to be reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes paid. 

 
Fixed Stock Option Plans 

The Company has two qualified and three non-qualified fixed stock option plans. Under the 2002 Incentive Stock Option Plan, one of the Company’s qualified plans, the 
Company may grant options to its management personnel for up to 6,000,000 shares of common stock. The 2002 Plan was established to replace, on substantially the same terms and 
conditions, the 1992 Plan. As of December 31, 2005, the 1992 Plan still has options outstanding. Options are granted to key administrative employees and Financial Advisors of 
Raymond James & Associates, Inc. who achieve certain gross commission levels. Options are exercisable in the 36th to 72nd months following the date of grant and only in the 
event that the grantee is an employee of the Company at that time, disabled or recently retired. 

As noted above, the Company has three non-qualified fixed stock option plans. Under the first of those plans, the Company may grant up to 3,417,188 shares of common 
stock to independent contractor Financial Advisors. Options are exercisable five years after grant date provided that the Financial Advisors are still associated with the Company. 
Under the Company's second non-qualified stock option plan, the Company may grant up to 569,532 shares of common stock to the Company's outside directors. Options vest over 
a five-year period from grant date provided that the director is still serving on the Board of the Company. Under the Company's third non-qualified stock option plan, the Company 
may grant up to 1,687,500 shares of common stock to key management personnel. Option terms are specified in individual agreements and expire on a date no later than the tenth 
anniversary of the grant date. Under all plans, the exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's stock on the date of grant and an option's maximum term is 
10 years. 

 
The Company’s net income for the three months ended December 31, 2005 includes $1.9 million of compensation costs and $0.2 million of income tax benefits related to the 

Company’s five fixed stock option plans. The Company’s net income for the three months ended December 31, 2004 includes $2.6 million of compensation costs and $0.2 million of 
income tax benefits related to the Company’s five fixed stock option plans.  
 

These amounts may not be representative of future stock-based compensation expense since the estimated fair value of stock options is amortized to expense straight line 
over the vesting period and additional options may be granted in future years. The fair value of each fixed option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for stock option grants in the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004: 
 

  (3) RJBank has $220 million in Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") advances outstanding at December 31, 2005, which are comprised of $150 million short-term, floating rate 
and $70 million long-term, fixed rate advances. The short-term, floating rate advances currently bear interest at rates ranging from 4.37% to 4.39%. The long-term, fixed 
rate advances bear interest at rates ranging from 2.37% to 5.67%. The outstanding FHLB advances mature between March 2006 and October 2014. These advances are 
secured by a blanket lien on the Bank's residential loan portfolio issued to FHLB at December 31, 2005.  

  Three Months Ended

  December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004

Dividend Yield 1.20% 1.10%
Expected Volatility 29.38% 38.54%
Risk-free Interest Rate 4.36% 3.67%
Expected Lives 4.9 yrs 5.1 yrs
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The dividend yield assumption is based on the Company’s current declared dividend as a percentage of the stock price. The expected volatility assumption for the current 

period is based on the Company’s historical stock price and is a weighted average combining (1) the volatility of the most recent year, (2) the volatility of the most recent time period 
equal to the expected lives assumption, and (3) the annualized volatility of the price of the Company’s stock over its entire history. The expected volatility used by the Company in 
the prior period presented was based on the annualized volatility of the price of the Company’s stock over its entire history. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on the 
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant of the options. The expected lives assumption is based on the average of (1) the assumption that all outstanding options will 
be exercised at the midpoint of their vesting date and full contractual term and (2) the assumption that all outstanding options will be exercised at their full contractual term.  

A summary of option activity of the Company's five fixed stock option plans for the three months ended December 31, 2005 is presented below: 
 

As of December 31, 2005, there was $24.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted 
average period of approximately three years. The weighted average grant date fair value of stock options granted during the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was 
$10.69 per share and $9.03 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $8.2 million 
and $5.9 million, respectively. The total grant date fair value of stock options vested during the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $6.4 million and $8.7 million, 
respectively. 

Cash received from stock option exercises for the three months ended December 31, 2005 was $10.6 million. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option 
exercise of the Company’s fixed stock option plans was $1.1 million for the three months ended December 31, 2005.  

      Weighted  
    Weighted Average  
    Average Remaining Aggregate

    Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

  Shares Price ($) Term (Years) Value ($)

Outstanding at         
October 1, 2005 4,700,114  $ 22.45  - -

Granted 1,310,075  35.86  - -
Exercised (535,446) 20.18  - -

Canceled (21,969) 23.73     
Expired (1,500) 20.92  - -

Outstanding at        
December 31, 2005 5,451,274  $25.89  3.14  $64,219,903 

Options exercisable at        
December 31, 2005 1,198,114  $21.70  1.08  $19,135,379 
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Restricted Stock Plan 

Under the 2005 Restricted Stock Plan the Company is authorized to issue up to 1,500,000 restricted shares of common stock to employees and independent contractors. The 
2005 Plan was established to replace, on substantially the same terms and conditions, the 1999 Plan. Awards under this plan may be granted by the Company in connection with 
initial employment or under various retention plans for individuals who are responsible for a contribution to the management growth, and/or profitability of the Company. These 
shares are forfeitable in the event of termination other than for death, disability or retirement. The compensation cost is recognized over the vesting period of the shares and is 
calculated as the market value of the shares on the date of grant. The following activity occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2005: 

 

 
The Company’s net income for the three months ended December 31, 2005 includes $1.4 million of compensation costs and $0.5 million of income tax benefits related to the 

Company’s Restricted Stock Plan. The Company’s net income for the three months ended December 31, 2004 includes $835,000 of compensation costs and $0.3 million of income tax 
benefits related to this plan.  
 

As of December 31, 2005, there was $17.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to grants under the Company’s Restricted Stock Plan. These costs are 
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 3.8 years. The total fair value of shares vested under this plan during the three months ended December 
31, 2005 was $547,000. 

 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

Under the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Company is authorized to issue up to 2,250,000 shares of common stock to its full-time employees, nearly all of whom are 
eligible to participate. Under the terms of the Plan, employees can choose each year to have up to 20% of their annual compensation specified to purchase the Company's common 
stock. Share purchases in any calendar year are limited to the lesser of 1,000 shares or shares with a market value of $25,000. The purchase price of the stock is 85% of the market 
price on the day prior to the purchase date. Under the Plan, and its expired predecessor plan, the Company sold 36,064 and 37,883 shares to employees during the three months 
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The compensation cost is calculated as the value of the 15% discount from market value and was $201,000 and $169,000 during the 
three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

Stock Bonus Plan 

The Company's 1999 Stock Bonus Plan authorizes the Company to issue up to 1,500,000 restricted shares to officers and certain other employees in lieu of cash for 10% to 
20% of annual bonus amounts in excess of $250,000. The determination of the number of shares to be granted may encompass a discount from market value at the discretion of the 
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Under the plan the shares are generally restricted for a three year period, during which time the shares are forfeitable in the event 
of voluntary termination. The compensation cost is recognized over the three-year vesting period based on the market value of the shares on the date of grant. The following 
activity occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2005: 

    Weighted

    Average

    Grant Date

  Shares Fair Value ($)

Nonvested at     
October 1, 2005 681,362  $ 24.03 

Granted 435,495  32.55 
Vested (28,701) 20.16 

Canceled - - 

Nonvested at    
December 31, 2005 1,088,156  $27.53 
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The Company’s net income for the three months ended December 31, 2005 includes $1.7 million of compensation costs and $0.6 million of income tax benefits related to the 
Company’s Stock Bonus Plan. The Company’s net income for the three months ended December 31, 2004 includes $417,000 of compensation costs and $0.2 million of income tax 
benefits related to this plan.  
 

As of December 31, 2005, there was $15 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to grants under the Company’s Stock Bonus Plan. These costs are expected 
to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2.1 years. The total fair value of shares vested under this plan during the three months ended December 31, 2005 
was $3.7 million. 

Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies: 
 
The Company is the lessor in two leveraged commercial aircraft transactions with two major domestic airlines (Delta and Continental). The Company's ability to realize its 

expected return is dependent upon the airlines' ability to fulfill their lease obligations. In the event that the airlines default on their lease commitments and the Trustees for the debt 
holders are unable to re-lease or sell the planes with adequate terms, the Company would suffer a loss of some or all of its investment. Delta Airlines filed for bankruptcy protection 
on September 14, 2005. Accordingly, the Company recorded a $6.5 million pretax charge during the three months ended September 30, 2005 to fully reserve the balance of its 
investment in the leveraged lease of an aircraft to Delta. The Company also took a $4 million pretax charge in the 2004 fiscal year to partially reserve for this investment. No amount 
of these charges represents a cash expenditure; however, in the event of a material modification to the lease or foreclosure of the aircraft by the debt holders, certain of the 
Company’s deferred tax payments of up to approximately $8.5 million could be accelerated. The expected tax payments are currently reflected on the statement of financial condition 
as a deferred tax liability and are not expected to result in a further charge to earnings.  

 
The Company also has an outstanding leveraged lease with Continental valued at $11.6 million as of December 31, 2005. The Company's equity investment represented 20% 

of the aggregate purchase price; the remaining 80% was funded by public debt issued in the form of equipment trust certificates. The residual value of the aircraft at the end of the 
lease term of approximately 17 years is projected to be 15% of the original cost. This lease expires in September 2013.  

 
Although Continental remains current on its lease payments to the Company, the inability of Continental to make its lease payments, or the termination of the lease through a 

bankruptcy proceeding, could result in the write-down of the Company's investment and the acceleration of certain income tax payments. Given the difficult economic environment 
for the airline industry, the Company is closely monitoring this investment for specific events or circumstances that would allow for a reasonable estimation of any potential 
impairment.  

    Weighted

    Average

    Grant Date

  Shares Fair Value ($)

Nonvested at     
October 1, 2005 574,684  $ 26.07 

Granted 262,090  37.31 
Vested (176,312) 20.92 

Canceled (1,585) - 

Nonvested at    
December 31, 2005 658,877  $31.98 

13



 
Raymond James Bank, F.S.B ("RJBank") has outstanding at any time a significant number of commitments to extend credit. These arrangements are subject to strict credit 

control assessments and each client's credit worthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. A summary of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit outstanding are as 
follows:  

 

 
Because many commitments expire without being funded in whole or part, the contract amounts are not estimates of future cash flows.  
 
In the normal course of business, RJBank issues, or participates in the issuance of, financial standby letters of credit whereby it provides an irrevocable guarantee of payment 

in the event the letter of credit is drawn down by the beneficiary. As of December 31, 2005, $17.5 million of such letters of credit were outstanding. Of the letters of credit 
outstanding, $16.4 million are underwritten as part of a larger corporate credit relationship, and the remaining $1.1 million are fully secured by cash or securities. In the event that a 
letter of credit is drawn down, RJBank would pursue repayment from the account party under the existing borrowing relationship, or would liquidate collateral, or both. The proceeds 
from repayment or liquidation of collateral are expected to cover the maximum potential amount of any future payments of amounts drawn down under the existing letters of credit.  

 
At December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, no securities were pledged by RJBank as collateral with the FHLB for advances. In lieu of pledging securities as collateral for 

advances, RJBank provided the FHLB with a lien against RJBank's portfolio of residential mortgage loans.  

As part of an effort to increase brand awareness, the Company entered into a stadium naming rights contract in July 1998. The contract has a 13 year term with a five-year 
renewal option and a 4% annual escalator. Expenses of $707,313 and $680,109 were recognized in the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into underwriting commitments. Transactions relating to such commitments that were open at December 31, 2005 and 
were subsequently settled had no material effect on the consolidated financial statements as of that date. 

The Company utilizes client marginable securities to satisfy deposits with clearing organizations. At December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, the Company had client 
margin securities valued at $92.6 million and $93.4 million, respectively, on deposit with a clearing organization. 

The Company has guaranteed lines of credit for various foreign joint ventures as follows: two lines of credit totaling $11 million in Turkey and one line of credit totaling $1.25 
million in Argentina. At December 31, 2005, there were no outstanding balances on these lines of credit. The Company has also from time to time authorized guarantees for the 
completion of trades with counterparties in Argentina and Turkey: at December 31, 2005 there were outstanding guarantees for a maximum of $5 million in Turkey and no guarantees 
were outstanding for Argentina. 

The Company has committed a total of $36.9 million, in amounts ranging from $200,000 to $1.5 million, to 37 different independent venture capital or private equity 
partnerships. As of December 31, 2005, the Company had invested $27.3 million of that amount. Additionally, the Company is the general partner in two internally sponsored private 
equity limited partnerships to which it has committed $14 million. Of that amount, the Company has invested $10.7 million as of December 31, 2005. 

 
The Company is the general partner in EIF Funds. These limited partnerships invest in the merchant banking and private equity activities of the Company and other 

unaffiliated venture capital limited partnerships. The EIF Funds were established as compensation and retention measures for certain qualified key employees of the Company. At 
December 31, 2005, the Company has $5.1 million committed to these funds. 

    December 31, 2005   September 30, 2005

    (in 000's)

         
Standby letters of credit   $ 17,460   $ 15,933

Consumer lines of credit   21,776   21,326

Commercial lines of credit   275,539   168,804

Unfunded loan commitments - variable rate   313,884   288,169

Unfunded loan commitments - fixed rate   6,275   11,402
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At December 31, 2005, the approximate market values of collateral received that can be repledged by the Company, were: 

During the quarter certain collateral was repledged. At December 31, 2005, the approximate market values of this portion of collateral and financial instruments owned that 
were repledged by the Company, were: 
 

In the normal course of business, certain subsidiaries of the Company act as general partner and may be contingently liable for activities of various limited partnerships. 
These partnerships engaged primarily in real estate activities. In the opinion of the Company, such liabilities, if any, for the obligations of the partnerships will not in the aggregate 
have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position. 

The Company guarantees the existing mortgage debt of Raymond James & Associates, Inc. ("RJA") of approximately $69 million. The Company may guarantee interest rate 
swap obligations of RJ Capital Services, Inc. The Company has also committed to lend to or guarantee obligations of RJTCF of up to $90 million upon request, subject to certain 
limitations as well as annual review and renewal. RJTCF borrows in order to invest in partnerships which purchase and develop properties qualifying for tax credits. These 
investments in project partnerships are then sold to various tax credit funds, which have third party investors, and for which RJTCF serves as the managing member or general 
partner. RJTCF typically sells these investments within 90 days of their acquisition, and the proceeds from the sales are used to repay RJTCF’s borrowings. Additionally, RJTCF 
may make short-term loans or advances to project partnerships on behalf of the tax credit funds in which it serves as managing member or general partner. At December 31, 2005, 
cash funded to invest in either loans or investments in project partnerships was $40.7 million. In addition, at December 31, 2005, RJTCF is committed to additional future fundings of 
$36.2 million related to project partnerships that have not yet been sold to various tax credit funds. 

 
The Company is a defendant or co-defendant in various lawsuits and arbitrations incidental to its securities business.  Like others in the retail securities industry, the 

Company experienced a significant increase in the number of claims seeking recovery due to portfolio losses in the early 2000's. During the past two years, the number of claims has 
declined but is still above long-term historic levels. 

 
As previously reported, RJF and Raymond James Financial Services, Inc. ("RJFS") are defendants in a series of lawsuits and arbitrations relating to an alleged mortgage 

lending program known as the "Premiere 72" program, that was administered by a company owned in part by two individuals who were registered as Financial Advisors with RJFS in 
Houston. In July 2005, RJFS paid approximately $24 million in a settlement with approximately 380 claimants in this litigation, representing approximately two-thirds of the 
outstanding claims. The Company estimates that the value of the claims resolved also represents approximately two-thirds of the value of the total claims and has made adjustments 
to its litigation reserves to give effect to the estimated impact of the settlement. Several of the arbitration claims relating to this matter had been previously settled by RJFS for 
amounts consistent with its evaluation of those claims. The remaining lawsuits are pending in five state courts; three of the suits have been consolidated for pretrial purposes, and 
one of those has been set for trial in October 2006. Appeals of orders denying motions to compel arbitration of approximately one half of these claims are still pending. Initial 
motions to compel arbitration of some of the plaintiffs' claims in the two non-consolidated cases are pending. 

Sources of collateral (in 000's):  
Securities purchased under agreements to resell $ 122,648
Securities received in securities borrowed vs. cash transactions 957,143
Collateral received for margin loans 1,317,750

Total $2,397,541

Uses of collateral and trading securities (in 000's):  
Securities purchased under agreements to resell $ 122,648
Securities received in securities borrowed vs. cash transactions 945,758
Collateral received for margin loans 331,554

Total $1,399,960
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The Company is contesting the allegations in these and other cases and believes that there are meritorious defenses in each of these lawsuits and arbitrations.  In view of the 

number and diversity of claims against the Company, the number of jurisdictions in which litigation is pending and the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of litigation and 
other claims, the Company cannot state with certainty what the eventual outcome of pending litigation or other claims will be.  In the opinion of the Company's management, based 
on current available information, review with outside legal counsel, and consideration of amounts provided for in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect 
to these matters, ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.  However, resolution of 
one or more of these matters may have a material effect on the results of operations in any future period, depending upon the ultimate resolution of those matters and upon the level 
of income for such period.  
 
Note 8 - Capital Transactions: 

The following table presents information on a monthly basis for purchases of the Company’s stock for the quarter ended December 31, 2005: 
 

 

 
Note 9 - Regulation and Capital Requirements: 
 

Certain broker-dealer subsidiaries of the Company are subject to the requirements of the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15c3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
RJA, a member firm of the NYSE, is also subject to the rules of the NYSE, whose requirements are substantially the same. Rule 15c3-1 requires that aggregate indebtedness, as 
defined, not to exceed fifteen times net capital, as defined. Rule 15c3-1 also provides for an “alternative net capital requirement”, which both RJA and RJFS have elected. It requires 
that minimum net capital, as defined, be equal to the greater of $250,000 or two percent of Aggregate Debit Items arising from client transactions. The NYSE may require a member 
firm to reduce its business if its net capital is less than four percent of Aggregate Debit Items and may prohibit a member firm from expanding its business and declaring cash 
dividends if its net capital is less than five percent of Aggregate Debit Items. The net capital position of RJA at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 was as follows: 

  Number of   Average

Period Shares Purchased (1)   Price Per Share

       
October 1, 2005 - October 31, 2005 2,562  $31.28

November 1, 2005 - November 30, 2005 615  37.17

December 1, 2005 - December 31, 2005 649  38.11

Total 3,826  $33.39

(1) The Company does not have a formal stock repurchase plan. Shares are repurchased at the discretion of management pursuant to prior authorization from the Board of 
Directors. On May 20, 2004, the Board of Directors authorized purchases of up to $75 million. Since that date 84,566 shares have been repurchased for a total of $2.0 million, 
leaving $73.0 million available to repurchase shares. Historically the Company has considered such purchases when the price of its stock reaches or approaches 1.5 times 
book value or when employees surrender shares as payment for option exercises. The decision to repurchase shares is subject to cash availability and other factors. During 
the quarter ended, December 31, 2005, the Company only purchased shares that were surrendered by employees as payment for option exercises. 

  December 31,   September 30,

  2005   2005

Raymond James & Associates, Inc.:  ($ in 000's)
(alternative method elected)      

Net capital as a percent of Aggregate      
Debit Items 24.6%    27.8% 

Net capital $ 341,041    $ 372,615 

Less: required net capital (27,726)   (26,804)

Excess net capital $ 313,315    $ 345,811 
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At December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, RJFS had no Aggregate Debit Items and therefore the minimum net capital of $250,000 was applicable. The net capital position 
of RJFS at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 was as follows:

 

Raymond James Ltd. ("RJ Ltd.") is subject to the Minimum Capital Rule (By-Law No. 17 of the Investment Dealers Association ("IDA")) and the Early Warning System (By-
Law No. 30 of the IDA). The Minimum Capital Rule requires that every member shall have and maintain at all times Risk Adjusted Capital greater than zero calculated in accordance 
with Form 1 (Joint Regulatory Financial Questionnaire and Report) and with such requirements as the Board of Directors of the IDA may from time to time prescribe. Insufficient Risk 
Adjusted Capital may result in suspension from membership in the stock exchanges or the IDA.  

The Early Warning System is designed to provide advance warning that a member firm is encountering financial difficulties. This system imposes certain sanctions on 
members who are designated in Early Warning Level 1 or Level 2 according to its capital, profitability, liquidity position, frequency of designation or at the discretion of the IDA. 
Restrictions on business activities and capital transactions, early filing requirements, and mandated corrective measures are sanctions that may be imposed as part of the Early 
Warning System. The Company was not in Early Warning Level 1 or Level 2 at December 31, 2005 or September 30, 2005.  

The Risk Adjusted Capital of RJ Ltd. was CDN$28,092,894 and CDN$25,482,000 at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, respectively. 

RJBank is subject to various regulatory and capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate 
certain mandatory - and possibly additional discretionary - actions by regulators. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, 
RJBank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of RJBank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory 
accounting practices. RJBank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require RJBank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and 
Tier I Capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, the Bank meets all 
capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. 

As of December 31, 2005, the most recent notification from the Office of Thrift Supervision categorized RJBank as “well capitalized” under the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as “well capitalized”, RJBank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table 
below. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed RJBank's category. 
 

  December 31,   September 30,

  2005   2005

Raymond James Financial Services, Inc.:  (in 000's)
(alternative method elected)      

Net capital  $ 38,951    $ 41,851 

Less: required net capital  (250)   (250)

Excess net capital  $ 38,701    $ 41,601 

      To be well capitalized

    Requirement for capital under prompt

    adequacy corrective action

  Actual purposes provisions

  Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

  ($ in 000's)

As of December 31, 2005:            
Total capital (to            

risk-weighted assets) $ 177,972 21.0% $67,819 8.0% $84,774 10.0%
Tier I capital (to            

risk-weighted assets) 167,843 19.8% 33,910 4.0% 50,864 6.0%
Tier I capital (to            

average assets) 167,843 11.3% 59,597 4.0% 74,496 5.0%
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Note 10 - Earnings Per Share: 

 
The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in 000’s, except per share amounts):  

 

 

      To be well capitalized

    Requirement for capital under prompt

    adequacy corrective action

  Actual purposes provisions

  Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

  ($ in 000's)

As of September 30, 2005:            
Total capital (to            

risk-weighted assets) $ 173,466 24.9% $55,685 8.0% $69,606 10.0%
Tier I capital (to            

risk-weighted assets) 165,874 23.8% 27,842 4.0% 41,764 6.0%
Tier I capital (to            

average assets) 165,874 12.6% 52,628 4.0% 65,785 5.0%

  Three Months Ended

  December 31, December 31,

  2005 2004

     
Net income $ 45,109 $ 39,243

     
Weighted average common shares    

outstanding during the period 74,334 74,002

     
Dilutive effect of stock options and awards (1) 1,423 1,332

     
Weighted average diluted common    

shares (1) 75,757 75,334

     
Net income per share - basic $ 0.61 $ 0.53

     
Net income per share - diluted (1)  $ 0.60 $ 0.52

     
Securities excluded from weighted average    

common shares because their effect    
would be antidulitive - 20

(1) Diluted earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of common stock plus the effect of dilutive potential common shares 
outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method. Dilutive potential common shares include stock options and awards. 
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Note 11 - Other Comprehensive Income: 

Total comprehensive income for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 is as follows (in 000's): 
 

 
Note 12 - Derivative Financial Instruments: 

 
The Company makes limited use of derivative financial instruments in certain of its businesses. Certain derivative financial instruments are used to manage well-defined 

interest rate risk at RJBank, while others are used in the conduct of the Company’s fixed income business. 
 
The Company uses interest rate derivative contracts, primarily interest rate swaps, as part of its fixed income business. The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce 

interest rate risk associated with maintaining certain fixed income trading inventories. The Company also enters into interest rate swaps with institutional clients to assist them with 
their management of interest rate risk. The Company reduces its exposure to interest rate risk arising from such client transactions by entering into offsetting interest rate derivative 
contracts with market counterparties. All positions are marked to market with the gain or loss, and the related interest recorded in Net Trading Profits within the statement of 
operations for the period. Any collateral exchanged as required by collateral support agreements in conjunction with certain interest rate derivatives is recorded in Broker 
Receivables and Payables within the statement of financial condition for the period. At December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005, the Company had outstanding interest rate 
derivative contracts with notional amounts of $1.9 billion and $1.7 billion, respectively. The notional amount of an interest rate swap is not a principal amount and does not change 
hands; it is simply used as a reference to calculate the exchange of interest payments. Accordingly, the notional amount of the Company’s interest rate derivatives outstanding at 
December 31, 2005 significantly exceeds the likely possible losses that could arise from such transactions. The net market value of all open interest rate derivative positions at 
December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 was $7 million and $10 million, respectively. 

 
RJBank uses variable-rate deposits to finance the purchase of certain loan pools that are fixed for the first five years of their life. The funding sources expose RJBank to 

variability in interest payments due to changes in interest rates. Management has used derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to the variability of its interest payments, 
by entering into interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from interest rate risk. These swaps change the variable-rate cash flow exposure on the 
funding sources to fixed cash flows. Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, RJBank receives variable interest rate payments and makes fixed interest rate payments, thereby 
creating the equivalent of fixed-rate funding. At December 31, 2005 September 30, 2005, RJBank was party to $6.2 million and $11.5 million, respectively, in notional amount of 
interest rate swap agreements, and had securities and cash of $700,000 and $900,000 million, respectively, pledged or held as interest-bearing collateral for such agreements. 

  Three Months Ended

  December 31,   December 31,

  2005   2004

Net income $ 45,109    $ 39,243 
Other comprehensive income:      

Unrealized (loss) gain on securities available for sale, net of tax (86)   143 
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps accounted for as cash flow hedges, net of tax 34    357 

Foreign currency translation adjustment (71)   2,190 

       
Total comprehensive income $ 44,986    $ 41,933 
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Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective, as defined by SFAS 133, and that is designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge are recorded in other 

comprehensive income until earnings are affected by the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged item. Any ineffectiveness resulting from the cash flow hedge is recorded 
in income or expense at the end of each reporting period. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, any ineffectiveness resulting from the cash flow hedge is subtracted or added 
back in the reconciliation of net income to cash provided by operating activities at the end of each reporting period. When hedge accounting is discontinued, RJBank continues to 
carry the derivative at its fair value in the statement of financial condition, and recognizes any changes in its fair value in earnings. For the three months ended December 31, 2005 
and 2004, RJBank had an immaterial impact on the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations from ineffective cash flow hedges and transition adjustments. The net amount 
of the existing unrealized losses expected to be reclassified into pretax earnings within the next 12 months was immaterial at December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005. 

 
The Company is exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to its interest rate swap agreements. The Company performs a credit 

evaluation of counterparties prior to entering into swap transactions. Currently, the Company anticipates that all counterparties will be able to fully satisfy their obligations under 
those agreements. The Company may require collateral from counterparties to support these obligations as established by the credit threshold specified by the agreement and/or as 
a result of monitoring the credit standing of the counterparties. However, state laws prohibit certain municipalities and other governmental entities from posting collateral in these 
transactions. For additional discussion regarding the Company’s objectives and strategies relative to derivative instruments in the context of the Company’s overall risk 
management strategy, refer to the Market Risk section in Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 
10-K. 
 
Note 13 - Segment Information: 
  

SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments. Operating 
segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or 
decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Reclassifications have been made in the segment disclosures for the three months 
ended December 31, 2004 to conform to the current period presentation. 

 
The Company currently operates through the following seven business segments: Private Client Group; Capital Markets; Asset Management; RJBank; Emerging Markets; 

Stock Loan/Borrow and various corporate investments combined in the "Other" segment. The business segments are based upon factors such as the services provided and the 
distribution channels served and are consistent with how the Company assesses performance and determines how to allocate resources throughout the Company and its 
subsidiaries. The financial results of the Company's segments are presented using the same policies as those described in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K. Segment data includes charges allocating corporate overhead and benefits to each segment. Intersegment 
revenues, charges, receivables and payables are eliminated between segments upon consolidation.  
 

The Private Client Group segment includes the retail branches of the Company's broker-dealer subsidiaries located throughout the United States, Canada and the United 
Kingdom. These branches provide securities brokerage services including the sale of equities, mutual funds, fixed income products and insurance products to their individual 
clients. The segment includes net interest earnings on client margin loans and cash balances. Additionally, this segment includes the correspondent clearing services that the 
Company provides to other broker-dealer firms.  
  

The Capital Markets segment includes institutional sales and trading in the United States, Canada and Europe. It provides securities brokerage, trading, and research services 
to institutions with an emphasis on the sale of U.S. and Canadian equities and fixed income products. This segment also includes the Company's management of and participation in 
underwritings, merger and acquisition services, public finance activities, and the operations of Raymond James Tax Credit Funds.  
 

The Asset Management segment includes investment portfolio management services of Eagle Asset Management, Inc., Awad Asset Management, Inc., and the Raymond 
James & Associates asset management services division, mutual fund management by Heritage Asset Management, Inc., private equity management by Raymond James Capital, 
Inc. and RJ Ventures, LLC, and trust services of Raymond James Trust Company and Raymond James Trust Company West. In addition to the asset management services noted 
above, this segment also offers fee-based programs to clients who have contracted for portfolio management services from outside money managers. 
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RJ Bank is a separate segment, which provides consumer, residential, and commercial loans, as well as FDIC-insured deposit accounts to clients of the Company's broker-
dealer subsidiaries and to the general public. 
 

The Emerging Markets segment includes various joint ventures in Argentina, India, Turkey, and Uruguay. These joint ventures operate in securities brokerage, investment 
banking and asset management.  

The Stock Loan/Borrow segment involves the borrowing and lending of securities from and to other broker-dealers, financial institutions and other counterparties, generally as 
an intermediary.  
 

The Other segment includes various investments of RJF. 
 
Information concerning operations in these segments of business is as follows (in 000's):  
 

 
The following table presents the Company's total assets on a segment basis: 

  Three Months Ended

  December 31, December 31,

  2005 2004

  (000's)

Revenues:    
Private Client Group $ 375,745 $ 339,948
Capital Markets 106,604 117,019
Asset Management 46,950 39,955
RJBank 17,854 8,983
Emerging Markets 13,809 9,210
Stock Loan/Borrow 11,616 6,825
Other 2,769 2,437

Total $ 575,347 $ 524,377

     
Income Before Provision for Income  
Taxes and Minority Interest: 

Private Client Group $ 36,811  $ 30,783 
Capital Markets 14,575  17,309 
Asset Management 11,014  8,383 
RJBank 3,201  3,252 
Emerging Markets 2,210  1,046 
Stock Loan/Borrow 2,224  1,046 
Other 1,300  2,986 

Pre-tax Income 71,335  64,805 

     
Minority Interest (515) 1,589 

     
Total $ 70,820  $ 66,394 

     
  December 31, September 30,

  2005 2005

  (000's)

Total Assets:     
Private Client Group * $ 5,161,088  $ 4,528,048 
Capital Markets ** 981,225  1,032,815 
Asset Management 57,828  74,418 
RJBank 1,504,229  1,327,675 
Emerging Markets 103,680  91,550 
Stock Loan/Borrow 1,112,820  1,147,314 
Other 209,941  156,949 

Total $ 9,130,811  $ 8,358,769 

  * Includes $46 million of goodwill allocated pursuant to SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets". 

  ** Includes $17 million of goodwill allocated pursuant to SFAS No. 142. 
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The Company has operations in the United States, Canada, Europe and joint ventures in India, Turkey, and Argentina. Substantially all long-lived assets are located in the 

United States. The following table represents revenue by country for the three months ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in 000’s).  

While the dollar amount invested in emerging market joint ventures is only $5.2 million, these investments carry greater risk than amounts invested in developed markets. 
 

  Three Months Ended

  December 31, December 31,

  2005 2004

  (000's)

Revenues:     
United States $ 492,894 $ 468,079
Canada 54,655 36,878
Europe 15,273 11,588
Other 12,525 7,832

Total $ 575,347 $ 524,377
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Business and Total Company Overview

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to help the reader understand the results of operations and the financial condition of the Company. 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, the Company’s financial statements and accompanying notes to 
the financial statements. 

 
The Company’s overall financial results continue to be highly and directly correlated to the direction and activity levels of the U.S. equity markets. In spite of the consistent 

increases in short-term interest rates, the U.S. equity markets performed reasonably well in the most recent quarter. If favorable market conditions continue, positive recruiting 
results in the private client group, a reasonable pipeline in investment banking and good asset management performance should augur well for continued strong revenues. 

Results of Operations - Three Months Ended December 31, 2005 Compared with the Three Months Ended December 31, 2004 

Total Company

Net revenues of $526.5 million represented a 6% increase over the prior year quarter, with all revenue categories except trading profits showing an increase. Largely on the 
strength of higher net interest earnings, the Company recorded its second consecutive quarter of record earnings. Net income of $45.1 million, or $.60 per diluted share, was 15% 
above the prior year quarter. Non-interest expenses rose 5%, representing increased variable compensation and normal support cost growth. The Company realized the benefit of 
operating leverage, although the current quarter was aided by lower legal expenses, incentive compensation accrual adjustments and a lower income tax rate. 

Segments

The Company currently operates through the following seven business segments: Private Client Group; Capital Markets; Asset Management; RJBank; Emerging Markets; 
Stock Loan/Borrow and various corporate investments combined in the "Other" segment.  

 
The following tables present the revenues and pre-tax income of the Company on a segment basis (in 000’s): 

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

  Three Months Ended

  December 31,   December 31,   Dollar   Percentage

  2005   2004   Change   Change

Revenues:              
  Private Client Group $ 375,745   $ 339,948  $ 35,797    11% 
  Capital Markets 106,604   117,019  (10,415)   (9%)
  Asset Management 46,950   39,955  6,995    18% 
  RJBank 17,854   8,983  8,871    99% 
  Emerging Markets 13,809   9,210  4,599    50% 
  Stock Loan/Stock Borrow 11,616   6,825  4,791    70% 
  Other 2,769   2,437  332    14% 
     Total $ 575,347   $ 524,377  $ 50,970    10% 
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Private Client Group 
 

The Private Client Group segment includes the retail branches of the Company's broker-dealer subsidiaries located throughout the United States, Canada, and the United 
Kingdom. The Private Client Group Financial Advisors provide securities brokerage services including the sale of equity securities, mutual funds, fixed income instruments and 
insurance products. This segment accounts for the majority of the Company's revenues (65% of total company revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2005). It 
generates revenues principally through commissions charged on securities transactions, fees from wrap fee investment accounts and the interest revenue generated from client 
margin loans and cash balances. The Company charges commissions to its Private Client Group clients based on commission schedules or through asset-based fee alternatives that 
clients can elect as an alternative to traditional commissions.  

 
The success of the Private Client Group is dependent upon the quality and integrity of its Financial Advisors and other associates and the Company's ability to attract, retain, 

and motivate a sufficient number of these associates. The Company faces competition for qualified associates from major financial services companies, including other brokerage 
firms, insurance companies, banking institutions, and discount brokerage firms. The Company currently offers several alternatives for Financial Advisors ranging from the 
traditional branch setting, under which the Financial Advisors are employees of the Company and the costs associated with running the branch are incurred by the Company, to the 
independent contractor model, under which the Financial Advisors are responsible for all of their own direct costs. Accordingly, the independent contractor Financial Advisors are 
paid a larger percentage of commissions and fees. By offering alternative models to potential and existing Financial Advisors, the Company is able to effectively compete with other 
brokerage firms for qualified Financial Advisors, as Financial Advisors can choose the model that best suits their practice and profile. As of December 31, 2005 the Company had 
4,661 Private Client Group Financial Advisors. For the past two years, the Company has focused on increasing its minimum production standards and recruiting Financial Advisors 
with high average production. The following table presents a summary of Private Client Group Financial Advisors as of the periods indicated: 

 

* Prior year quarter is restated to reflect a change in the definition of a producing Financial Advisor.

  Three Months Ended

  December 31,   December 31,   Dollar   Percentage

  2005   2004   Change   Change

Income Before Provision for Income Taxes and 
Minority Interest: 

             

  Private Client Group $ 36,811   $ 30,783  $ 6,028    20% 
  Capital Markets 14,575   17,309  (2,734)   (16%)
  Asset Management 11,014   8,383  2,631    31% 
  RJBank 3,201   3,252  (51)    (2%) 
  Emerging Markets 2,210   1,046  1,164    111% 
  Stock Loan/Stock Borrow 2,224   1,046  1,178    113% 
  Other 1,300   2,986  (1 ,686)   (56%) 
  Pre-tax Income 71,335   64,805  $ 6,530    10% 

              
  Minority Interest (515)   1,589  (2,104)   (132%)

              
  Total $ 70,820   $ 66,394  $ 4,426   7%

  December 31,   December 31,

  2005   2004

Private Client Group - Financial Advisors:      
Traditional Branch 1,170   1,072

Independent Contractor * 3,491   3,508

Total Financial Advisors 4,661   4,580
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The Private Client Group (“PCG”) results reflect an increase of 20% in pre-tax income over the same quarter in the prior year with only a 6% increase in net revenues. In large 
part, this is a result of significantly lower legal expenses; such expenses in the prior year were related to a few significant cases which have now been substantially settled or 
adequately reserved for. Commission revenue in this segment was up 4% over the prior year, the result of an increase of 81 (2%) in the number of Financial Advisors. Recruiting has 
been active in the domestic employee division, with notable success in recruiting large producers. This can be expected to improve average firm production but has also led to a 7% 
increase in commission expense as large producers command significant front end bonuses and are paid at higher payout brackets. Also contributing to increased payouts is the 
growth in the RJ Ltd. independent contractor division over the prior year. As a combined result of these factors, commission expense as a percentage of commission income is up 
more than one percentage point. Business development expense increased 20% over the same quarter prior year, predominantly related to expenses associated with recruiting and 
increased advertising. All other expenses increased at a rate less than the increase in gross revenue. Net interest income is $2 million greater than in the prior year quarter ended 
December due to a combination of the increased interest rate environment and increased client net credit balances. PCG margins on net revenue increased from 9.3% to 10.5%.  

 
Capital Markets 

 
The Capital Markets segment includes institutional sales and trading in the United States, Canada, and Europe; management of and participation in underwritings; merger and 

acquisition services; public finance activities; and the syndication of investment partnerships designed to yield returns in the form of low-income housing tax credits to institutions. 
The Company provides securities brokerage services to institutions with an emphasis on the sale of U.S. and Canadian equities and fixed income products. Institutional sales 
commissions account for the majority of the segment's revenue and are driven primarily through trade volume, resulting from a combination of general market activity and by the 
Capital Markets group’s ability to find attractive investment opportunities and promote those opportunities to potential and existing clients. Revenues from investment banking 
activities are driven principally by the number and the dollar value of the transactions with which the company is involved. This segment also includes trading of taxable and tax-
exempt fixed income products, as well as equity securities in the OTC and Canadian markets. This trading involves the purchase of securities from, and the sale of securities to, 
clients of the Company or other dealers who may be purchasing or selling securities for their own account or acting as agent for their clients. Profits and losses related to this 
trading activity are primarily derived from the spreads between bid and ask prices in the relevant market.  

  Three Months Ended

  December 31,   December 31,

  2005   2004

  ($ in millions)

Client Margin Accounts:      
Average Balance $ 1,138    $ 1,107 

Average Rate 6.95%    4.90% 

       
Assets Segregated:      

Average Balance $ 2,571    $ 2,228 

Average Rate 4.04%    1.97% 

       
Client Interest Program:      

Average Balance $ 3,026    $ 2,767 

Average Rate 3.26%    1.17% 
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Domestic institutional commissions declined $11 million in Fixed Income and $4 million in Equity Capital Markets from the same quarter prior year. Fixed Income commissions 

remained weak in the rising interest rate, flat yield curve environment. Equity Capital Markets commissions are lower in comparison to an unusually strong December quarter in the 
prior year. Commission levels were up in both the European institutional offices (nearly $2 million) and in RJ Ltd’s capital markets division (over $4 million). RJ Ltd had a strong 
underwriting quarter, with 14 deals vs. 8 deals in the prior December, resulting in investment banking fees more than doubling and exceeding $9 million. RJ Ltd’s trading profits 
nearly tripled, reaching $2.2 million. Both reflect the positive market environment in Canada. The number of domestic managed/co-managed corporate underwritings was essentially 
flat (27 vs. 26), resulting in flat investment banking fee revenue of $19 million. Fixed Income had considerably lower investment banking fee revenue ($500,000 vs. $3 million in the 
prior year quarter) and trading profits were $2.9 million vs. $ 9.2 million in the prior year quarter. Incentive compensation expense was $12.5 million, or 40%, lower than in the prior 
year, with approximately one fourth of the decrease in the domestic equity capital markets division and the remaining three-fourths in the fixed income division. All other expenses 
increased modestly reflecting Consumer Price Index based raises and general support cost growth. 

 

 
Asset Management

  
The Asset Management segment includes investment portfolio management services, mutual fund management, private equity management, and trust services. Investment 

portfolio management services include both proprietary and selected outside money managers. The majority of the revenue for this segment is generated by the investment 
advisory fees related to asset management services for individual investment portfolios and mutual funds. These accounts are billed a fee based on a percentage of assets. 
Investment advisory fees are charged based on either a single point in time within the quarter, typically the beginning or end of a quarter, or the “average daily” balances of assets 
under management. The balance of assets under management is affected by both the performance of the underlying investments and the new sales and redemptions of client 
accounts/funds. Improving equity markets provide the Asset Management segment with the potential to improve revenues from investment advisory fees as existing accounts 
appreciate in value, in addition to individuals and institutions being more likely to commit new funds to the equity markets. The following table presents the assets under 
management as of the dates indicated:  

  Three Months Ended

  December 31,   December 31,

  2005   2004

Number of managed/co-managed public equity offerings:      
US 27   26

Canada 14   8

       
Total dollars raised (in 000's):      

US $5,052,000   $5,334,000

Canada (in U.S. dollars) 220,000   51,000
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Investment Advisory fees increased 16%, with assets under management up 12% over the prior year. Assets under management increased approximately $1.2 billion in both 

Eagle Asset Management (proprietary asset management) and Raymond James Consulting Services (a program offering 30 independent investment subadvisors to the company’s 
clients). Compensation expenses were 20% higher than in the same quarter of the previous year, related to increased administrative expense and the 31% increase in the segment's 
pre-tax profits. Non-interest expenses grew 15%, with the increase largely due to an increase in data communications expense related to portfolio system enhancements.  

 
RJ Bank 

 
RJBank provides residential, consumer, and commercial loans, as well as FDIC-insured deposit accounts, to clients of the Company's broker-dealer subsidiaries and to the 

general public. RJBank also purchases residential whole loan packages, and participates with other banks in corporate loan syndications. RJBank generates revenue principally 
through the interest income earned on the loans noted above offset by the interest expense it incurs on client deposits and borrowings. RJBank’s policy is to maintain a 
substantially duration-matched portfolio of assets and liabilities.  

 
Both interest revenue and expense increased significantly at RJ Bank over the prior year, a result of aggressive growth in the bank’s balance sheet. In August 2005, the 

Company contributed $80 million in capital to RJ Bank in preparation for offering customers an improved cash sweep alternative for certain brokerage accounts. This alternative is 
expected to be introduced in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. In anticipation of this change there has been dramatic growth in RJBank’s asset balances, predominantly purchases of 
residential mortgage loan pools. Until the new sweep commences, the funding for this growth has been FHLB advances. During periods of growth when new loans are originated or 
purchased, an allowance for loan losses is established for potential losses inherent in those new loans. Accordingly, a robust period of growth paradoxically results in charges to 
earnings in that period, while the benefits of higher interest earnings are realized in later periods. As a result of this increase in loan loss provisions, RJBank’s profits are essentially 
flat despite a 52% increase in net revenues. 
 
Emerging Markets 

 
Emerging Markets includes the results of the Company’s joint venture operations in India, Latin America and Turkey. The most significant growth has been in the Company's 

Turkish joint venture where revenues have increased 143% to nearly $7 million. Pre-tax profits were $2 million in Turkey vs. $734,000 in the same quarter of the prior year. 
 
Stock Loan/Stock Borrow 
 

Improved results in this segment were a result of higher interest rates and resultant improved spreads, as the average balances actually declined marginally. 

  Dec 31,   June 24,   March 24,   Dec. 31,

  2005   2005   2005   2004

Assets Under Management (in 000's):              
               

Eagle Asset Management, Inc.  $11,583,998   $11,198,226   $10,722,299   $10,393,956
Heritage Family of Mutual Funds  8,587,468   8,439,054   8,517,701   8,533,528
Raymond James Consulting Services  6,886,746   6,192,639   5,794,133   5,632,472
Awad Asset Management  1,189,863   1,189,450   1,423,757   1,560,230
Freedom Accounts 3,052,367   1,956,063   1,523,684   1,264,874

Total Assets Under Management $31,300,442   $28,975,432   $27,981,574   $27,385,060

               
Less: Assets Managed for other internal Asset Management Entities 3,250,683   2,807,011   2,536,049   2,313,716

               
Total Third Party Assets Under Management $28,049,759   $26,168,421   $25,445,525   $25,071,344

               
Trust Company Assets Under Administration $ 1,155,358   $ 1,041,895   $ 1,032,794   $ 1,055,572
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Other 

 
This segment consists of earnings on corporate cash and private equity investments made at the corporate level net of expenses, predominantly executive compensation. 

 
Statement of Financial Condition Analysis 

The Company’s statement of financial condition consists primarily of cash and cash equivalents (a large portion of which are segregated for the benefit of customers), 
receivables and payables. The statement of financial condition is primarily liquid in nature, providing the Company with flexibility in financing its business. Total assets of $9.1 
billion at December 31, 2005 were up 9% over September 30, 2005. Virtually all of this increase is due to the jump in brokerage client cash deposits, leading to a similar increase in 
segregated cash balances on the asset side. In addition, securities owned and RJBank loans increased, the latter largely funded by an increase in FHLB advances (loans payable). 
The broker-dealer gross assets and liabilities, including stock loan/stock borrow, receivables and payables from/to brokers, dealers and clearing organizations and clients fluctuate 
with the Company's business levels and overall market conditions. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash used in operating activities during the three months ended December 31, 2005 was approximately $167 million, primarily attributable to an increase in segregated assets, 
an increase in securities inventory levels, an increase in prepaid expenses and other assets, a decrease in broker-dealer payables and a decrease in accrued compensation, 
commissions and benefits. This was partially offset by an increase in payables due clients, a decrease in receivables associated with the Company’s stock loan/borrowed business, 
and an increase in securities sold under agreements to repurchase. 

 
Investing activities used $330 million in cash, which is primarily due to loans originated and purchased by RJBank, the purchases of other investments and capital 

expenditures, net of loan repayments and the maturation of available for sale securities. 
 

Financing activities provided $175 million, the result of an increase in FHLB advances and deposits at RJBank and cash provided from the exercise of stock options and 
employee stock purchases. This was partially offset by the repayments of borrowings and the payment of cash dividends.  
 

At December 31, 2005 and September 30, 2005 the Company had loans payable of approximately $292 million and $146 million, respectively. The balance at December 31, 2005 
is comprised primarily of a $69 million mortgage on its home-office complex, a $1 million mortgage on the office of a foreign joint venture, $220 million in Federal Home Loan Bank 
advances (used to fund operations at RJBank), and various short-term borrowings totaling approximately $2 million.  

  
As of December 31, 2005, consistent with year-end, the Company's liabilities are comprised primarily of client payables of $4.4 billion at the broker-dealer subsidiaries and 

deposits of $1.1 billion at RJBank, as well as deposits held on stock loaned transactions of $1.1 billion. The Company primarily acts as an intermediary in stock borrowed/loan 
transactions. As a result, the liability associated with the stock loan transactions is directly related to the $946 million receivable comprised of the Company's cash deposits for stock 
borrowed transactions. To meet its obligations to clients, the Company has approximately $3.7 billion in cash and cash equivalents segregated pursuant to federal regulations. The 
Company also has client brokerage receivables of $1.4 billion.  

The Company believes its existing assets, which are highly liquid in nature, together with funds generated from operations should provide adequate funds for continuing 
operations. 

 
As of December 31, 2005 both of the Company's domestic broker-dealer subsidiaries well exceeded the net capital requirements of the Uniform Net Capital Rule under the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, RJ Ltd exceeded the Risk Adjusted Capital required under the Minimum Capital Rule of the IDA, and RJBank was “well capitalized” under the 
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There have been no significant changes in circumstances since year-end that have affected the capital of either the broker-dealer 
subsidiaries or RJBank with respect to their respective regulatory capital requirements. 
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The Company has contractual obligations of approximately $1.4 billion with $688 million coming due in the next twelve months related to its short and long-term debt, non-

cancelable lease agreements, partnership investments, unfunded commitments to extend credit, a naming rights agreement, and $315 million in commitments related to RJBank's 
letters and lines of credit. Commitments related to letters and lines of credit may expire without being funded in whole or part, therefore these amounts are not estimates of future 
cash flows (see Note 7 to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on the Company’s commitments). 

 
In addition to the mortgage loan and advances from the FHLB, the Company and its subsidiaries have several lines of credit denominated in U.S. dollars and one line of credit 

denominated in Canadian dollars, with aggregate available balances of $660 million and CDN$40 million (US$34 million), respectively. At December 31, 2005, the Company was in 
compliance with all covenants of the lines of credit and its mortgage loans. 
 
Effects of Inflation 

The Company's assets are primarily liquid in nature and are not significantly affected by inflation. Management believes that the changes in replacement cost of property and 
equipment are adequately insured and therefore would not materially affect operating results. However, the rate of inflation affects the Company's expenses, including employee 
compensation, communications and occupancy, which may not be readily recoverable through charges for services provided by the Company. 
 
Factors Affecting “Forward-Looking Statements” 

 
From time to time, the Company may publish “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of 

the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or make oral statements that constitute forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements may relate to such 
matters as anticipated financial performance, future revenues or earnings, business prospects, projected ventures, new products, anticipated market performance, and similar 
matters. The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements. In order to comply with the terms of the safe harbor, the 
Company cautions readers that a variety of factors could cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the 
Company's forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company's control, are discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” of Item 
1 included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company does not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies 
 

The condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. For a full 
description of these and other accounting policies, see Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K. The 
Company believes that of its significant accounting policies, those described below involve a high degree of judgment and complexity. These critical accounting policies require 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported in the condensed consolidated financial statements. Due to their nature, 
estimates involve judgment based upon available information. Actual results or amounts could differ from estimates and the difference could have a material impact on the 
condensed consolidated financial statements. Therefore, understanding these policies is important in understanding the reported results of operations and the financial position of 
the Company. 
 
Valuation of Securities and Other Assets 

“Trading securities” and “Available for sale securities” are reflected in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition at fair value or amounts that 
approximate fair value. In accordance with SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”, unrealized gains and losses related to these financial 
instruments are reflected in net earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on the underlying purpose of the instrument. The following table presents the Company’s 
trading and available for sale securities segregated into cash (i.e., non-derivative) trading instruments, derivative contracts, and available for sale securities: 
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Cash Trading Instruments and Available for Sale Securities 

When available, the Company uses prices from independent sources such as listed market prices, or broker or dealer price quotations to derive the fair value of the 
instruments. For investments in illiquid, privately held or other securities that do not have readily determinable fair values, the Company uses estimated fair values as determined by 
management. The following table presents the carrying value of cash trading, available for sale securities, and derivative contracts for which fair value is measured based on quoted 
prices or other independent sources versus those for which fair value is determined by management: 

 
Derivative Contracts 

Fair value for derivative contracts are obtained from pricing models that consider current market and contractual prices for the underlying financial instruments, as well as 
time value and yield curve or volatility factors underlying the positions.  

 
Investment in Leveraged Leases 

 
The Company is the lessor in two leveraged commercial aircraft transactions with two major domestic airlines (Delta and Continental). The Company's ability to realize its 

expected return is dependent upon the airlines' ability to fulfill their lease obligations. In the event that the airlines default on their lease commitments and the Trustees for the debt 
holders are unable to re-lease or sell the planes with adequate terms, the Company would suffer a loss of some or all of its investment. Delta Airlines filed for bankruptcy protection 
on September 14, 2005. Accordingly, the Company recorded a $6.5 million pretax charge during the three months ended September 30, 2005 to fully reserve the balance of its 
investment in the leveraged lease of an aircraft to Delta. The Company also took a $4 million pretax charge in the 2004 fiscal year to partially reserve for this investment. No amount 
of these charges represents a cash expenditure; however, in the event of a material modification to the lease or foreclosure of the aircraft by the debt holders, certain of the 
Company’s deferred tax payments of up to approximately $8.5 million could be accelerated. The expected tax payments are currently reflected on the statement of financial condition 
as a deferred tax liability and are not expected to result in a further charge to earnings.  

 
The Company also has an outstanding leveraged lease with Continental valued at $11.6 million as of December 31, 2005. The Company's equity investment represented 20% 

of the aggregate purchase price; the remaining 80% was funded by public debt issued in the form of equipment trust certificates. The residual value of the aircraft at the end of the 
lease term of approximately 17 years is projected to be 15% of the original cost. This lease expires in September 2013.  

  December 31, 2005

   
Financial

Instruments Owned
at Fair Value

  Financial
Instruments Sold

but not yet Purchased
at Fair Value

  (in 000’s) 
       
Cash trading instruments $ 465,701   $104,578 

Derivative contracts 11,393   4,223

Available for sale securities 171,203   -

Total $ 648,297   $ 108,801

  December 31, 2005

   
Financial

Instruments Owned at Fair Value

  Financial 
Instruments Sold

but not yet Purchased at Fair Value

  (in 000’s) 
Fair value based on quoted prices and independent sources $ 632,812   $ 104,578

Fair value determined by Management 15,485   4,223

Total $ 648,297   $ 108,801
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Although Continental remains current on its lease payments to the Company, the inability of Continental to make its lease payments, or the termination of the lease through a 

bankruptcy proceeding, could result in the write-down of the Company's investment and the acceleration of certain income tax payments. Given the difficult economic environment 
for the airline industry, the Company is closely monitoring this investment for specific events or circumstances that would allow for a reasonable estimation of any potential 
impairment.  

Goodwill 

Goodwill is related to the acquisitions of Roney & Co. (now part of RJA) and Goepel McDermid, Inc. (now called Raymond James Ltd). This goodwill, totaling $63 million, was 
allocated to the reporting units within the Private Client Group and Capital Markets segments pursuant to SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. Goodwill 
represents the excess cost of a business acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, indefinite-life intangible assets and goodwill are 
not amortized. 

The Company reviews its goodwill in order to determine whether its value is impaired on at least an annual basis. Goodwill is impaired when the carrying amount of the 
reporting unit exceeds the implied fair value of the reporting unit. When available, the Company uses recent, comparable transactions to estimate the fair value of the respective 
reporting units. The Company calculates an estimated fair value based on multiples of revenues, earnings, and book value of comparable transactions. However, when such 
comparable transactions are not available or have become outdated, the Company uses discounted cash flow scenarios to estimate the fair value of the reporting units. As of 
December 31, 2005, goodwill had been allocated to the Private Client Group of RJA, and both the Private Client Group and Capital Markets segments of RJ Ltd. As of the most recent 
impairment test, the Company determined that the carrying value of the goodwill for each reporting unit had not been impaired. However, changes in current circumstances or 
business conditions could result in an impairment of goodwill. As required, the Company will continue to perform impairment testing on an annual basis or when an event occurs or 
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. 

Reserves 

The Company recognizes liabilities for contingencies when there is an exposure that, when fully analyzed, indicates it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and 
the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. When a range of probable loss can be estimated, the Company accrues the most likely amount; if not determinable, the Company 
accrues at least the minimum of the range of probable loss.  
 

The Company records reserves related to legal proceedings in "other payables". Such reserves are established and maintained in accordance with SFAS No. 5, "Accounting 
for Contingencies", and Financial Interpretation No. 14. The determination of these reserve amounts requires significant judgment on the part of management. Management 
considers many factors including, but not limited to: the amount of the claim; the amount of the loss in the client's account; the basis and validity of the claim; the possibility of 
wrongdoing on the part of an employee of the Company; previous results in similar cases; and legal precedents and case law. Each legal proceeding is reviewed with counsel in 
each accounting period and the reserve is adjusted as deemed appropriate by management. Lastly, each case is reviewed to determine if it is probable that insurance coverage will 
apply, in which case the reserve is reduced accordingly. Any change in the reserve amount is recorded in the consolidated financial statements and is recognized as a charge/credit 
to earnings in that period.  

The Company also records reserves or allowances for doubtful accounts related to client receivables and loans. Client receivables at the broker-dealers are generally 
collateralized by securities owned by the brokerage clients. Therefore, when a receivable is considered to be impaired, the amount of the impairment is generally measured based on 
the fair value of the securities acting as collateral, which is measured based on current prices from independent sources such as listed market prices or broker-dealer price 
quotations.  
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Client loans at RJBank are generally collateralized by real estate or other property. RJBank provides for both an allowance for losses in accordance with SFAS No. 5, 
“Accounting for Contingencies”, and a reserve for individually impaired loans in accordance with SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by a Creditor for Impairment of a Loan”. The 
calculation of the SFAS No. 5 allowance is subjective as management segregates the loan portfolio into different classes and assigns each class an allowance percentage based on 
the perceived risk associated with that class of loans. The factors taken into consideration when assigning the reserve percentage to each class include estimates of borrower 
default probabilities and collateral values; trends in delinquencies; volume and terms; changes in geographic distribution, lending policies, local, regional, and national economic 
conditions; concentrations of credit risk and past loss history. In addition, the Company provides for potential losses inherent in RJBank’s unfunded lending commitments using 
the criteria above, further adjusted for an estimated probability of funding. For individual loans identified as impaired, RJBank measures impairment based on the present value of 
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. At 
December 31, 2005, the amortized cost of all RJBank loans was $1.27 billion and an allowance for loan losses of $10.1 million was recorded against that balance. The allowance for 
loan losses is equal to 0.91% of the amortized cost of the loan portfolio.  

The Company also makes loans or pays advances to Financial Advisors, primarily for recruiting and retention purposes. The Company provides for an allowance for doubtful 
accounts based on an evaluation of the Company’s ability to collect such receivables. The Company’s ongoing evaluation includes the review of specific accounts of Financial 
Advisors no longer associated with the Company and the Company’s historical collection experience. At December 31, 2005 the receivable from Financial Advisors was $65.2 
million, which is net of an allowance of $8.6 million for estimated uncollectibility. 
 
Income Taxes 
 

SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”, establishes financial accounting and reporting standards for the effect of income taxes. The objectives of accounting for 
income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that 
have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements or tax returns. Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in 
the Company’s financial statements or tax returns. Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax consequences could materially impact the Company’s financial position, 
results of operations, or cash flows. 

 
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk 

For a description of the Company’s risk management policies, including a discussion of the Company’s primary market risk exposures, which include interest rate risk and 
equity price risk, as well as a discussion of the Company’s credit risk, operational risk, and regulatory and legal risk and a discussion of how these exposures are managed, refer to 
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005.  

 
Market Risk

 
Market risk is the risk of loss to the Company resulting from changes in interest rates and equity prices. The Company has exposure to market risk primarily through its 

broker-dealer and banking operations. The Company's broker-dealer subsidiaries trade tax exempt and taxable debt obligations and act as an active market maker in approximately 
280 over-the-counter equity securities. In connection with these activities, the Company maintains inventories in order to ensure availability of securities and to facilitate client 
transactions. Additionally, the Company, primarily within its Canadian broker-dealer subsidiary, invests for its own proprietary equity investment account. 

 
The following table represents the fair value of trading inventories associated with the Company's broker-dealer client facilitation, market-making activities and proprietary 

trading activities.  
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Changes in value of the Company's trading inventory may result from fluctuations in interest rates, credit ratings of the issuer, equity prices and the correlation among these 
factors. The Company manages its trading inventory by product type and has established trading divisions that have responsibility for each product type. The Company's primary 
method of controlling risk in its trading inventory is through the establishment and monitoring of limits on the dollar amount of securities positions that can be entered into and 
other risk based limits; limits are established both for categories of securities (e.g., OTC equities, high yield securities, municipal bonds) and for individual traders. As of December 
31, 2005, the absolute fixed income and equity inventory limits were $1,382,000,000 and $79,600,000, respectively. The Company's trading activities were well within these limits at 
December 31, 2005. Position limits in trading inventory accounts are monitored on a daily basis. Consolidated position and exposure reports are prepared and distributed to senior 
management. Limit violations are carefully monitored. Management also monitors inventory levels and trading results, as well as inventory aging, pricing, concentration and 
securities ratings. For derivatives, primarily interest rate swaps, the Company monitors exposure in its derivatives subsidiary daily based on established limits with respect to a 
number of factors, including interest rate risk, spread, ratio and basis risk and volatility. These exposures are monitored both on a total portfolio basis and separately for selected 
maturity periods.  

Interest Rate Risk 
 
RJA is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of maintaining trading inventories of fixed income instruments, which are sensitive to changes in interest rates. The Company 

monitors, on a daily basis, the Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) in its institutional Fixed Income trading portfolios (cash instruments and interest rate derivatives). VaR is a technique for 
estimating the potential loss in the Company's fixed income portfolio due to adverse market movements over a specified time horizon and confidence level. 

 
The Company uses historical simulation for calculating VaR. Simulated scenarios were derived based on a one-year observation period, with equal weighting given to the 

one-day relative change scenarios. VaR is reported at a 99% confidence level, based on a one-day holding period. This means the Company would expect to incur losses greater 
than that predicted by VaR estimates only once in every 100 trading days, or about 2.5 times a year. However, shortfalls on a single day can exceed reported VaR by significant 
amounts. Shortfalls can also accumulate over a longer time horizon, such as a number of consecutive trading days.  
 

The following tables set forth the high, low, and daily average VaR for the Company's overall institutional portfolio during the fiscal quarter ended December 30, 2005, with 
the corresponding dollar value of the Company's portfolio.  

  December 31, 2005   September 30, 2005

      Securities       Securities

      Sold but       Sold but

  Trading   Not yet   Trading   Not yet

  Securities   Purchased   Securities   Purchased

  (in 000's)

   
Marketable:              

Municipal $ 193,413   $ -   $ 177,984   $ 17

Corporate 143,263   48   27,830   2,285

Government  53,155   43,823   42,009   99,465

Agency 36,068   43,454   60,445   84

Total debt securities 425,899   87,325   308,268   101,851

               
Derivative contracts 11,393   4,223   12,795   2,488

Equity securities 32,562   17,253   32,237   30,256

Other securities 7,240   -   6,379   -

Total $477,094   $108,801   $359,679   $134,595
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The reported P/L loss in the portfolio did not exceed the VaR during the period. The increase in VaR from September 30, 2005 resulted from additional trading inventory.  

The modeling of the risk characteristics of trading positions involves a number of assumptions and approximations. While management believes that its assumptions and 
approximations are reasonable, there is no uniform industry methodology for estimating VaR, and different assumptions or approximations could produce materially different VaR 
estimates. Given its reliance on historical data, VaR is most effective in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental changes or shifts in market 
conditions. An inherent limitation of VaR models is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factors may not produce accurate predictions of future market risk, 
particularly during periods of unusual market events and disruptions. Moreover, VaR calculated for a one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that 
cannot be liquidated or offset with hedges within one day. Accordingly, management also monitors the risk in its trading activities by establishing position limits and daily review of 
trading results, inventory aging, pricing, concentration, and securities ratings. 

 
Additional information is discussed under Derivative Financial Instruments in Note 12 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
RJBank maintains an investment portfolio that is comprised of mortgage-backed securities, as well as mortgage, consumer and commercial loans. Those investments are 

funded in part by its client obligations, including demand deposits, money market accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of deposit. Based on the current investment portfolio 
of RJBank, market risk for RJBank is limited primarily to interest rate risk. RJBank reviews interest rate risk based on net interest income, which is the net amount of interest received 
and interest paid. The following table represents the carrying value of RJBank's assets and liabilities that are subject to market risk. This table does not include financial instruments 
with limited market risk exposure due to offsetting asset and liability positions, short holding periods or short periods of time until the interest rate resets. 

 

 
As noted above, RJBank reviews interest rate risk based on net interest income and impact on RJBank's equity. One of the core objectives of RJBank's Asset/Liability 

Management Committee is to manage the sensitivity of net interest income to changes in market interest rates. The Asset/Liability Management Committee uses several measures to 
monitor and limit RJBank's interest rate risk including scenario analysis, interest repricing gap analysis and limits, and net portfolio value limits. Model-based scenario analysis is 
used to monitor and report the interest rate risk positions, and analyze alternative strategies.  

  Quarter ended December 31, 2005 VaR at

 ($ in 000's)  High Low Daily Average
 

December 31, 2005 September 30, 2005

           
Daily VaR 1,251 312 821.1 1,251 532
Portfolio Value (net) 303,377 177,669 268,283 303,377 169,978
Daily VaR as a percent of Daily Portfolio 
Value 0.41% 0.18% 0.30% 0.41% 0.31%

RJBank Financial Instruments with Market Risk (as described above, in 000's): 
         
    December 31, 2005   September 30, 2005

         
Mortgage-backed securities   $ 6,129   $ 6,716

Municipal obligations    5   5

Loans receivable, net   791,479   648,649

Total assets with market risk   $ 797,613   $ 655,370

         
         

Certificates of deposit   $ 229,930   $ 220,660

Federal Home Loan Bank advances   70,000   70,000

Interest rate swaps   17   72

Total liabilities with market risk   $ 299,947   $ 290,732
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Net interest income is the net amount of interest received less interest paid. This involves large volumes of contracts and transactions, and numerous different products. 

Simulation models and estimation techniques are used to assess the sensitivity of the net interest income stream to movements in interest rates. Assumptions about consumer 
behavior play an important role in these calculations; this is particularly relevant for loans such as mortgages where the client has the right, but not the obligation, to repay before 
the scheduled maturity. On the liability side, the re-pricing characteristics of deposits are based on estimates since the rates are not coupled to a specified market rate. 

 
The sensitivity of net interest income to interest rate conditions is estimated for a variety of scenarios. Assuming an immediate and lasting shift of 100 basis points in the term 

structure of interest rates, RJBank's sensitivity analysis indicates that an upward movement would decrease RJBank's net interest income by 10.42% in the first year after the rate 
jump, whereas a downward shift of the same magnitude would increase RJBank's net interest income by 4.43%. These sensitivity figures are based on positions as of December 31, 
2005, and are subject to certain simplifying assumptions, including that management takes no corrective action. The outcome is affected by higher pre-payment expectations if rates 
fall. 

Equity Price Risk

 
The Company is exposed to equity price risk as a consequence of making markets in equity securities and the investment activities of RJA and RJ Ltd. The U.S. broker-dealer 

activities are client-driven, with the objective of meeting clients' needs while earning a trading profit to compensate for the risk associated with carrying inventory. The Company 
attempts to reduce the risk of loss inherent in its inventory of equity securities by monitoring those security positions constantly throughout each day and establishing position 
limits. The Company's Canadian broker-dealer has a proprietary trading business with 27 traders. The average aggregate inventory held for proprietary trading during the quarter-
ended December 31, 2005 was CDN$4,363,502. The Company's equity securities inventories are priced on a regular basis and there are no material unrecorded gains or losses. 
 
Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
 

Disclosure Controls are procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company's reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this report, 
is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls are also designed to ensure that such 
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed 
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, as the Company's are designed to do, and management necessarily 
was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. The Company recently implemented software to enhance its 
financial reporting capabilities. 
 

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company has evaluated 
the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures are effective. There were no changes in the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2005 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control 
over financial reporting.  
   

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

 
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

The Company is a defendant or co-defendant in various lawsuits and arbitrations incidental to its securities business.  Like others in the retail securities industry, the 
Company experienced a significant increase in the number of claims seeking recovery due to portfolio losses in the early 2000's. During the past two years, the number of claims has 
declined but is still above long-term historic levels. 

35



 
As previously reported, RJF and RJFS are defendants in a series of lawsuits and arbitrations relating to an alleged mortgage lending program known as the "Premiere 72" 

program, that was administered by a company owned in part by two individuals who were registered as Financial Advisors with RJFS in Houston. In July 2005, RJFS paid 
approximately $24 million in a settlement with approximately 380 claimants in this litigation, representing approximately two-thirds of the outstanding claims. The Company estimates 
that the value of the claims resolved also represents approximately two-thirds of the value of the total claims and has made adjustments to its litigation reserves to give effect to the 
estimated impact of the settlement. Several of the arbitration claims relating to this matter had been previously settled by RJFS for amounts consistent with its evaluation of those 
claims. The remaining lawsuits are pending in five state courts; three of the suits have been consolidated for pretrial purposes, and one of those has been set for trial in October 
2006. Appeals of orders denying motions to compel arbitration of approximately one half of these claims are still pending. Initial motions to compel arbitration of some of the 
plaintiffs' claims in the two non-consolidated cases are pending. 

 
The Company is contesting the allegations in these and other cases and believes that there are meritorious defenses in each of these lawsuits and arbitrations.  In view of the 

number and diversity of claims against the Company, the number of jurisdictions in which litigation is pending and the inherent difficulty of predicting the outcome of litigation and 
other claims, the Company cannot state with certainty what the eventual outcome of pending litigation or other claims will be.  In the opinion of the Company's management, based 
on current available information, review with outside legal counsel, and consideration of amounts provided for in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect 
to these matters, ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations.  However, resolution of 
one or more of these matters may have a material effect on the results of operations in any future period, depending upon the ultimate resolution of those matters and upon the level 
of income for such period.  

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS  
 

On December 31, 2005, the Company issued 34,721 shares of its common stock, $.01 par value, in connection with the merger of F.W. Penn & Co., Inc. (“Penn & Co.”) into RJ 
Penn Acquisition Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. As a result of the merger, Penn & Co. and its wholly owned subsidiary, The Penn Investment Group, Inc., a 
Texas corporation registered as a broker-dealer with the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Company relied 
upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.  
 

Reference is made to information contained under “Capital Transactions” in Note 8 of the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the information required 
by Part II, Item 2(c). 
 

The Company expects to continue paying cash dividends. However, the payment and rate of dividends on the Company's common stock is subject to several factors 
including operating results, financial requirements of the Company, compliance with the net worth covenant in the Company's line of credit agreement, and the availability of funds 
from the Company's subsidiaries, including the broker-dealer subsidiaries, which may be subject to restrictions under the net capital rules of the SEC, NYSE and the IDA; and 
RJBank, which may be subject to restrictions by federal banking agencies. Such restrictions have never become applicable with respect to the Company's dividend payments. (See 
Note 9 of the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the capital restrictions placed on RJBank and the Company's broker-dealer 
subsidiaries).  
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Item 6. EXHIBITS  
 
 

 

10   Raymond James Financial, Inc. Amended Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors, as amended on December 1, 2005, filed herewith. 
     

11   Statement Re: Computation of per Share Earnings (The calculation of per share earnings is included in Part I, Item 1 in the Notes to Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements (Earnings Per Share) and is omitted here in accordance with Section (b)(11) of Item 601 of Regulation S-K.). 

     
31.1   Principal Executive Officer Certification as required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), filed herewith. 

     
31.2   Principal Financial Officer Certification as required by Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), filed herewith. 

     
32.1   Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as  

Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,filed  
herewith. 

     
32.2   Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as  

Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,filed  
herewith. 
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     Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto 
duly authorized. 
 
 
 
  

 
 

    RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC.

    (Registrant)

     
     
     
     
Date:   February 9, 2006   /s/ Thomas A. James

    Thomas A. James

    Chairman and Chief

    Executive Officer

     
     
     
     
    /s/ Jeffrey P. Julien

    Jeffrey P. Julien

    Senior Vice President - Finance 
    and Chief Financial

    Officer



Exhibit 10
RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC.

AMENDED
STOCK OPTION PLAN

FOR OUTSIDE DIRECTORS

THIS IS A STOCK OPTION PLAN FOR OUTSIDE DIRECTORS, hereinafter referred to as the "Plan", effective as of December 12, 1986, by Raymond James Financial, Inc., 
(the "Company"), and is made with reference to the following facts: 
 

A. The Company recognizes the need to attract and retain high-quality outside directors and to provide additional incentive to such individuals to contribute to the 
success of the Company and to promote the growth and general prosperity of the Company. 
 

B.  By its execution of this instrument, the Company hereby establishes this Plan in order to attain the above-stated objectives. 
 

C. The Plan is designed to grant outside directors stock options to purchase Shares of the Company's Common Stock. 
 

D. The Plan is not intended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option Plan under Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company herein adopts this Plan to read as follows: 
 

1. Definitions. As used herein, the following definitions shall apply: 
 

(a) "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company. 
 

(b) "Common Stock" shall mean common stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Company. 
 

(c) "Committee" shall mean the Stock Option Committee if one is appointed by the Board in accordance with Section 3(a) of the Plan. 
 

(d) "Continuous Status as an Outside Director" shall mean the absence of any interruption or termination of such relationship. Continuous Status as an Outside 
Director shall not be considered interrupted in the case of sick leave, military leave or any other leave of absence approved by the Board. 

 
(e)  "Director" shall mean any person elected to serve on the Board of Directors of the Company who is not an employee of the Company. 

 
(f) "Option" shall mean a stock option granted pursuant to the Plan. 

 
(g) "Optioned Stock" shall mean stock subject to an option granted pursuant to the Plan. 

 
(h)  "Optionee" shall mean a Director who receives an Option. 

 
(i) "Share" shall mean the Common Stock of the Company, as adjusted in accordance with Section 11 of the Plan. 

 
2. Stock Subject to the Plan. 

 
(a) Number of Shares. Subject to the provisions of Section 11 of the Plan, the maximum aggregate number of Shares which may be optioned and sold under the 

Plan shall be 50,000. Such Shares may be authorized, but unissued, or may be treasury Shares. 
 

(b) Expired or Unexercisable Options. If an Option should expire or become unexercisable for any reason without having been exercised in full, the unpurchased 
Shares which were subject thereto shall, unless the Plan shall have been terminated, become available for other Options under the Plan. 

 
3. Administration of the Plan. 

 
(a) Procedural Rules. 

 
(1) The Plan shall be administered by the Board. 

 
(2) The Board may appoint a Committee consisting of not less than three members of the Board to administer the Plan on behalf of the Board, subject to 

such terms and conditions as the Board may prescribe. Once appointed, the Committee shall continue to serve until otherwise directed by the Board. From time to 
time, the Board may increase the size of the Committee and appoint additional members thereof, remove members (with or without cause) and appoint new 
members in substitution therefore, fill vacancies, however caused, and remove all members of the Committee and, thereafter, directly administer the Plan. A 
majority of the entire Committee shall constitute a quorum and the action of a majority of the members present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall be 
deemed the action of the Committee. In addition, any decision or determination reduced to writing and signed by all of the members of the Committee shall be fully 
as effective as if it had been made by a majority vote at a meeting duly called and held. The Committee may appoint a secretary to keep minutes of its meetings and 
may make such rules and regulations for the conduct of its business as it shall deem advisable. 

 
(3) If no Committee has been appointed, members of the Board may vote on any matters affecting the administration of the Plan or the grant of any 



Options pursuant to the Plan. 
 

(4)  As hereinafter used in this Plan and in any Option granted hereunder, the term "Committee" shall refer to either the Committee or the Board if no 
Committee is then designated. 

 
(b) Powers of the Committee. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall have the authority: 

 
(1) To determine the Directors to whom, and the time or times at which Options shall be granted, and the number of Shares to be represented by each 

Option; 
 
(2) To interpret the Plan; 
 
(3) To prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan; 
 
(4) To determine the terms and provisions of each Option granted under the Plan (which need not be identical) and, with the consent of the holder 

thereof, modify or amend each Option; 
 
(5) To authorize any person to execute on behalf of the Company any instrument required to effectuate the grant of an Option previously granted by the 

Committee; and  
 
(6) To make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. 

 
(c) Effect of Committee's Decision. All decisions, determinations and interpretations of the Committee shall be final and binding on all Optionees and any other 

holders of any Options granted under the Plan. 
 

4. Eligibility. Options may be granted only to Directors of the Company and options to purchase no more than 20,000 shares may be granted to any one director. A Director 
who has been granted an Option may, if he is otherwise eligible, be granted an additional Option or Options. 
 

5. Term of Plan. The Plan shall become effective upon its adoption by the Board. It shall continue in effect indefinitely unless sooner terminated under Section 12 of the 
Plan. 

6. Terms of Options. The term of each Option granted under the Plan shall be five years from the date of grant thereof and, unless otherwise provided in the terms of an 

Option, shall be exercisable through the 60th month from the date such Option is granted (except in the case of resignation or removal, permanent disability or death, in which events 
Subparagraphs 9(c), 9(d) and 9(e) hereof, respectively, are applicable) and must be exercised in whole or in part during the exercise period. To the extent the Option is not exercised 
in full prior to termination, it will expire. 

7. Option Price. The Option Price for Shares to be issued pursuant to any Option granted under the Plan shall be the fair market value of a Share of Common Stock on the 
date of grant. For the Purposes hereof, fair market value shall be based upon one of the following: (i) in case the Common Stock shall not be publicly traded, the fair market value 
shall be the book value of a Share of Common Stock as of the end of the most recently ended calendar quarter of the Company; (ii) in case the Common Stock shall not then be listed 
and traded upon a recognized securities exchange, upon the basis of the mean between the bid and asked quotations for such stock on the date of grant (as reported by a 
recognized stock quotation service) or, in the event that there shall be no bid or asked quotations on the date of grant, then upon the basis of the mean between the bid and asked 
quotations on the date nearest preceding the date of grant; or (iii) in case the Common Stock shall then be listed and traded upon a recognized securities exchange, upon the basis 
of the mean between the highest and lowest selling prices at which shares of the Common Stock were traded on such recognized securities exchange on the date of grant or, if the 
Common Stock was not traded on said date, upon the basis of the mean of such prices on the date nearest preceding the date of grant.  
 

8. Grant of Options.  
 

Procedure for Granting. Options shall be granted at the sole discretion of the Committee; and the date of grant of an Option under the Plan shall, for all such 
purposes, be the date on which the Committee makes the determination to grant such Option. Notice of the determination shall be given to each Director to whom an Option is so 
granted within a reasonable time after such date. 
 

9. Exercise of Option. 
 

(a)  Procedure for Exercise. 
 

(1) Any Option granted hereunder shall be exercisable at such times and under such conditions as shall be permissible under the terms of the Plan and of 
the Option granted to an Optionee, and for purposes of this paragraph, an Option shall be treated as outstanding until it is exercised or expires by reason of a 
lapse of time. 

 
(2) An Option may not be exercised for fractional shares. 
 
(3) An Option shall be deemed to be exercised when written notice of such exercise has been given to the Company in accordance with the terms of the 

Option by the person entitled to exercise the Option and full payment of the Shares with respect to which the Option is exercised has been received by the 
Company. Until the issuance of the stock certificates (as evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of 
the Company), no right to vote or receive dividends or any other rights as a stockholder shall exist with respect to Optioned Stock notwithstanding the exercise of 
the Option. No adjustment will be made for a dividend of other rights for which the record date is prior to the date of the stock certificates are issued except as 
provided in Section 11 of the Plan. 

 
(4) Payment for Shares with respect to which an Option is exercised may be made wholly or partially in the form of Common Stock. Such Common Stock 

shall be valued at "fair market value" upon the date of exercise as the term "fair market value" is determined pursuant to Section 7 hereof. 
 



(b) Exercise During Contractual Relationship. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of an Option, an Option must be exercised by the Optionee while he is a 
Director and has maintained since the date of the grant the Option the Continuous Status as a Director. 

 
(c) Exercise Upon Retirement. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of an Option, if an Optionee's continuous Status as a Director terminates 

by reason of retirement pursuant to the Company's Corporate Governance Principles all outstanding Options shall immediately vest and become 
exercisable on the last day of service as a Director and all outstanding Options shall expire in accordance with the original term for each Option.  

 
(d)  Exercise Upon Resignation or Removal. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of an Option, if an Optionee's Continuous Status as a Director terminates by 

reason of resignation or removal by the Company's Board or Shareholders, the number of outstanding Options exercisable and the exercise period(s) are subject to the 
discretion of the Committee. 

 
(e) Exercise Upon Disability. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of an Option, if an Optionee's Continuous Status as a Director terminates by reason of a 

permanent disability, the Optionee shall then be entitled to exercise the Option in whole or in part; provided, however, such Option must be exercised in whole or in part 
within 120 days following the date that the Optionee became permanently disabled. An Optionee is permanently disabled if the Committee determines he is unable to 
engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has 
lasted or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months. 

 
(f) Exercise Upon Death. Unless otherwise provided in the terms of an Option, if an Optionee's Continuous Status as a Director terminates by reason of his death, 

the outstanding Options of the deceased Optionee may be exercised, in whole or in part, within 120 days following the death of Optionee, by the person or persons 
(including his estate) to whom his rights under such Option shall have passed by will or by laws of descent and distribution. 

 
10. Transferability Limitations. Any Option granted hereunder may not be sold, pledged, assigned, hypothecated, transferred or disposed of in any manner other than by 

will or by the laws of descent and distribution, and shall be exercisable, during the Optionee's lifetime, only by him. 
 

11. Changes in Company Capitalization.  
 

(a) Optioned Stock Adjustment Upon Exercise. If all or any portion of an Option is exercised subsequent to any stock dividend, split-up, recapitalization, 
combination or exchange of shares, merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, separation, reorganization or other similar change or transaction of or by the 
Company, as a result of which shares of any class are issued in respect of outstanding Shares or Shares are changed into the same or a different number of shares of the 
same or another class or classes, the person or persons so exercising such an Option shall receive, for the aggregate option price payable upon such exercise, the 
aggregate number and class of Shares equal to the number and class of Shares he would have had on the date of exercise had the Shares been purchased for the same 
aggregate price at the date the Option was granted, taking into consideration any such stock dividend, split-up, recapitalization, combination or exchange of shares, merger, 
consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, separation, reorganization or other similar change or transaction; provided, however, that no fractional Share shall be issued 
upon any such exercise and the aggregate price paid shall be appropriately reduced on account of any fractional Share not issued. 

 
(b) Non-Optioned Stock Adjustment. In the event of any change in the Shares, as described in Subsection (a) above, the aggregate number and class of Shares 

remaining available under the Plan shall be adjusted to equal the number and class of Shares which a person would have been entitled to receive pursuant to this Section 11 
if an Option for all Shares remaining available under the Plan had been granted to said person on the date preceding such change. 

 
12. Amendment and Termination of the Plan. 
 

(a) Amendment or Termination. The Board, without approval of the stockholders, may terminate the Plan at any time or amend the Plan from time to time in such 
respects as the Board may deem advisable. 

 
(b) Effect of Amendment or Termination. Any such amendment or termination of the Plan shall not affect Options already granted and such Options shall remain in 

full force and effect as if this Plan had not been amended or terminated. 
 

13. Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares. 
 

(a) Legal Restrictions. Shares shall not be issued with respect to an Option granted under the Plan unless the exercise of such Option and the issuance and 
delivery of such Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and the requirements of any stock exchange upon which the Shares may then be 
listed, and shall be further subject to the approval of counsel for the Company with respect to such compliance. 

 
(b) Representations Required. As a condition to the exercise of an Option, the Company may require the person exercising such Option to represent and warrant at 

the time of any such exercise that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares if, in the option of 
counsel for the Company, such a representation is required by any of the aforementioned relevant provisions of law. 

 
14. Reservation of Shares. The Company, during the term of this Plan, will at all times reserve and keep available the number of Shares as shall be sufficient to satisfy the 

requirements of the Plan. 
 

15. Liability of Company. The Company or any subsidiary which is in existence or thereafter comes into existence shall not be liable to an Optionee or other person as to: 
 

(a) Non-Issuance of Shares. The non-issuance or sale of Shares as a result of the Company being unable to obtain from any regulatory body having jurisdiction, 
the authorization deemed by the Company's counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuance and sale of any Shares hereunder; and  

 
(b) Tax Consequences. Any tax consequences expected, but not realized, by any Optionee or other person due to the exercise of any Option granted hereunder. 

 
16. Governing Law. This Plan shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. 



 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has duly executed this Plan effective as of the date and year first above written. 

 
Dated:  December 1, 2005 
 
Attest:                              RAYMOND JAMES FINANCIAL, INC. 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Paul L. Matecki       By:  /s/ Thomas A. James 
Paul L. Matecki         Thomas A. James 
Assistant Secretary         President 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT 31.1

  
CERTIFICATIONS 

  
  

I, Thomas A. James, certify that: 

  
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Raymond James Financial, Inc.;  
  

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light 
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  
  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
  

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which 
this report is being prepared; 

  

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; 

  

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

  

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over 
financial reporting; and 

  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors 
and the audit committee of registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
  

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

  

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

  
Date: February 9, 2006

 
  
  

/s/ THOMAS A. JAMES
Thomas A. James
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2 
  

CERTIFICATIONS 

  
            I, Jeffrey P. Julien, certify that:  
  

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Raymond James Financial, Inc.;  
  

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light 
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  
  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
  

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material 
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which 
this report is being prepared; 

  

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles; 

  

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the 
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

  

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the 
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over 
financial reporting; and 

  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors 
and the audit committee of registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
  

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely 
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

  

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial 
reporting. 

  
 

  
  

Date: February 9, 2006 
  
  

 
  

/s/ JEFFREY P. JULIEN
Jeffrey P. Julien
Senior Vice President - Finance 
and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
  

  
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Raymond James Financial, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities 

and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Thomas A. James, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:  
  

   

  
Dated: February 9, 2006 

 /s/ THOMAS A. JAMES
Thomas A. James
Chief Executive Officer
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   1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

   2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO 

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  
  

  
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Raymond James Financial, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities 

and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jeffrey P. Julien, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:  
  

   

  
Dated: February 9, 2006 

/s/ JEFFREY P. JULIEN
Jeffrey P. Julien
Chief Financial Officer
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   1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

   2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  


